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UNITED STATES SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION
Washington, D.C. 20549

Form 10-Q

(Mark One)

p QUARTERLY REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d)
OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934
For the quarterly period ended September 30, 2008

or

0 TRANSITION REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d)
OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934
For the transition period from to

Commission file no. 001-13831

Quanta Services, Inc.
(Exact name of registrant as specified in its charter)

Delaware 74-2851603
(State or other jurisdiction of (LR.S. Employer
incorporation or organization) Identification No.)
1360 Post Oak Blvd.
Suite 2100
Houston, Texas 77056

(Address of principal executive offices, including zip code)

(Registrant s telephone number, including area code)
(713) 629-7600
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Indicate by check mark whether the registrant (1) has filed all reports required to be filed by Section 13 or 15(d) of the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934 during the preceding 12 months (or for such shorter period that the registrant was
required to file such reports), and (2) has been subject to such filing requirements for the past 90 days. Yesp Noo

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a large accelerated filer, an accelerated filer, a non-accelerated filer,
or a smaller reporting company. See the definitions of large accelerated filer, accelerated filer and smaller reporting
company in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act. (Check one):

Large accelerated filer p Accelerated filer o Non-accelerated filer o Smaller reporting company o
(Do not check if a smaller reporting company)

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a shell company (as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange
Act). Yeso Nop

196,560,225 shares of Common Stock were outstanding as of November 3, 2008. As of the same date, 744,154 shares
of Limited Vote Common Stock were outstanding.

Table of Contents 3



Edgar Filing: QUANTA SERVICES INC - Form 10-Q

QUANTA SERVICES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

INDEX
Page
PART I. FINANCIAL INFORMATION

ITEM 1. Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements (Unaudited)

QUANTA SERVICES. INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheets 2

Condensed Consolidated Statements of Operations 3

Condensed Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows 4

Notes to Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements 5
ITEM 2. Management s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of 31

Operations
ITEM 3. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk 51
ITEM 4. Controls and Procedures 52

PART II. OTHER INFORMATION
ITEM 1. Legal Proceedings 52
ITEM 1A. Risk Factors 53
ITEM 2. Unregistered Sales of Equity Securities and Use of Proceeds 53
ITEM 5. Other Information 54
ITEM 6. Exhibits 55
Signature 56

EXHIBIT 10.1
EXHIBIT 10.2
EXHIBIT 10.3
EXHIBIT 10.4
EX-31.1
EX-31.2
EX-32.1




Edgar Filing: QUANTA SERVICES INC - Form 10-Q

Table of Contents

QUANTA SERVICES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
(In thousands, except share information)
(Unaudited)

ASSETS
Current Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
Accounts receivable, net of allowances of $4,620 and $6,001, respectively
Costs and estimated earnings in excess of billings on uncompleted contracts
Inventories
Prepaid expenses and other current assets

Total current assets

Property and equipment, net of accumulated depreciation of $300,178 and
$333,566, respectively

Other assets, net

Intangible assets, net of accumulated amortization of $20,915 and $50,379,
respectively

Goodwill

Total assets

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS
Current Liabilities:
Current maturities of long-term debt
Accounts payable and accrued expenses
Billings in excess of costs and estimated earnings on uncompleted contracts

Total current liabilities

Convertible subordinated notes

Deferred income taxes

Insurance and other non-current liabilities

Total liabilities
Commitments and Contingencies
Stockholders Equity:

Common stock, $.00001 par value, 300,000,000 shares authorized,
172,455,951 and 174,805,974 shares issued and 170,255,631 and

Table of Contents

December 31,
2007

$ 407,081
719,672
72,424

25,920

79,665

1,304,762

532,285
42,992

152,695
1,355,098

$ 3,387,832

EQUITY

$ 271,011
420,815
65,603

757,429
143,750
101,416
200,094

1,202,689

September 30,
2008

$ 266,429
958,931
71,492

26,335

59,595

1,382,782

640,079
35,772

144,262
1,359,674

$ 3,562,569

$ 268,847
459,989
51,514

780,350
143,750

79,580
219,417

1,223,097
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172,418,188 shares outstanding, respectively
Limited Vote Common Stock, $.00001 par value, 3,345,333 shares authorized,
760,171 and 748,381 shares issued and outstanding, respectively

Additional paid-in capital 2,423,349
Accumulated deficit (214,191)
Accumulated other comprehensive income 3,663
Treasury stock, 2,200,320 and 2,387,786 common shares, at cost (27,680)
Total stockholders equity 2,185,143
Total liabilities and stockholders equity $ 3,387,832

2,464,776
(94,563)

1,418
(32,161)

2,339,472

3,562,569

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these condensed consolidated financial statements.
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QUANTA SERVICES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

(In thousands, except per share information)

Revenues
Cost of services (including depreciation)

Gross profit
Selling, general and administrative expenses
Amortization of intangible assets

Operating income

Interest expense

Interest income

Loss on early extinguishment of debt
Other income (expense), net

Income from continuing operations before income
tax provision
Provision for income taxes

Income from continuing operations
Discontinued operation:

Income from discontinued operation (net of
income tax expense of $1,046 and $1,316 in the
three and nine months ended September 30, 2007)
Net income

Basic earnings per share:

Income from continuing operations

Income from discontinued operation

Net income

Weighted average basic shares outstanding
Diluted earnings per share:

Income from continuing operations

Income from discontinued operation

Net income

Table of Contents

(Unaudited)
Three Months Ended
September 30,
2007 2008
$ 655,865 $ 1,053,355
540,812 867,789
115,053 185,566
59,816 80,126
4,868 8,998
50,369 96,442
(5,165) (5,223)
5,389 2,022
(1) ()
(702) (74)
49,880 93,165
2,930 38,307
46,950 54,858
2,371
$ 49321 $ 54,858
$ 0.34 $ 0.32
0.02
$ 0.36 $ 0.32
136,279 171,693
$ 0.30 $ 0.29
0.01
$ 0.31 $ 0.29

Nine Months Ended
September 30,
2007 2008
$ 1,777,044 $ 2,858,679
1,499,172 2,390,546
277,872 468,133
155,793 227,134
6,332 29,464
115,747 211,535
(16,261) (15,642)
15,341 8,105
(1T) ()
(591) 408
114,225 204,404
14,626 84,776
99,599 119,628
2,791
$ 102,390 $ 119,628
$ 0.80 $ 0.70
0.02
$ 0.82 $ 0.70
124,362 170,938
$ 0.70 $ 0.64
0.02
$ 0.72 $ 0.64
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Weighted average diluted shares outstanding 167,869 203,131 155,828 202,292

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these condensed consolidated financial statements.
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QUANTA SERVICES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

(In thousands)
(Unaudited)
Three Months Ended
September 30,
2007 2008
Cash Flows from Operating Activities:
Net income $ 49321 $ 54,858
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided
by operating activities
Depreciation 13,792 19,806
Amortization of intangibles 4,868 8,998
Amortization of debt issuance costs 649 655
Amortization of deferred revenue (687) (2,635)
Loss (gain) on sale of property and equipment (1,095) (841)
Gain on sale of discontinued operation (2,348)
Loss on early extinguishment of debt 11 2
Provision for doubtful accounts 642 1,328
Provision for insurance receivable
Deferred income tax provision 5,846 9,970
Non-cash stock-based compensation 2,464 4,043
Tax impact of stock-based equity awards (1,559) (318)
Non-cash loss on foreign currency derivative 497
Changes in operating assets and liabilities, net of non-cash
transactions
(Increase) decrease in
Accounts and notes receivable (41,823) (139,659)
Costs and estimated earnings in excess of billings on
uncompleted contracts 11,887 10,624
Inventories 725 4,698
Prepaid expenses and other current assets (3,194) 10,308
Increase (decrease) in
Accounts payable and accrued expenses and other
non-current liabilities (8,245) 33,193
Billings in excess of costs and estimated earnings on
uncompleted contracts 9,175 2,826
Other, net 1,854 (1,040)
Net cash provided by operating activities 42,780 16,816
Cash Flows from Investing Activities:
Proceeds from sale of property and equipment 10,472 2,058
Additions of property and equipment (18,958) (51,776)
Cash paid for acquisitions, net of cash acquired 20,596 (4,819)
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Nine Months Ended
September 30,
2007 2008
$ 102,390 $ 119,628
38,6601 57,986
6,332 29,464
1,999 1,964
(687) (6,886)
(864) (1,147)
(2,348)
11 2
1,015 4,230
3,375
7,329 7,747
6,085 12,402
(7,146) (2,625)
497
(2,139) (234,316)
(1,119) 7,118
6,099 (213)
(3,417) 9,886
(42,549) 55,910
4,462 (14,271)
647 (136)
115,258 50,118
14,746 11,122
(61,023) (164,925)
862 (27,728)

9
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Cash paid for developed technology (14,573)
Purchases of short-term investments (309,055)
Proceeds from the sale of short-term investments 309,055
Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities 12,110 (54,537) (45,415) (196,104)
Cash Flows from Financing Activities:
Proceeds from other long-term debt 330 5,205 635
Repayments of convertible subordinated notes (33,273) (D) (33,273) (D)
Payments on other long-term debt (60,869) 45) (67,400) (1,643)
Debt issuance and amendment costs (875) (875)
Tax impact of stock-based equity awards 1,559 318 7,146 2,625
Exercise of stock options 2,219 315 5,440 5,963
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities (90,909) 587 (83,757) 7,579
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents (36,019) (37,134) (13,914) (138,407)
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes on cash and cash
equivalents 1,697 (1,228) 1,697 (2,245)
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of period 405,792 304,791 383,687 407,081
Cash and cash equivalents, end of period $ 371,470 $ 266,429 $ 371470 $ 266,429
Supplemental disclosure of cash flow information
Cash (paid) received during the period for
Interest paid $ (781) $ (148) $ (10,517) $  (9,285)
Income taxes paid $ (7234) $ (25478 $ (35,827) $ (60,933)
Income tax refunds $ 46 3 171 % 202 $ 656

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these condensed consolidated financial statements.
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QUANTA SERVICES INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Unaudited)

1. BUSINESS AND ORGANIZATION:

Quanta Services, Inc. (Quanta) is a leading national provider of specialized contracting services. Beginning January 1,
2008, Quanta began reporting its results under two business segments. The infrastructure services (Infrastructure
Services) segment provides specialized contracting services, offering end-to-end network solutions to the electric
power, gas, telecommunications and cable television industries, including the design, installation, repair and
maintenance of network infrastructure, as well as certain ancillary services. Additionally, the dark fiber (Dark Fiber)
segment designs, procures, constructs and maintains fiber-optic telecommunications infrastructure in select markets
and licenses the right to use point-to-point fiber-optic telecommunications facilities to its customers. Prior to

January 1, 2008, Quanta reported results under one business segment, which consisted primarily of the services now
under the Infrastructure Services segment.

On August 30, 2007, Quanta acquired, through a merger transaction (the Merger), all of the outstanding common

stock of InfraSource Services, Inc. (InfraSource). For accounting purposes, the transaction was effective as of

August 31, 2007, and results of InfraSource s operations have been included in the consolidated financial statements
subsequent to August 31, 2007. Accordingly, the condensed consolidated financial statements for the three and nine
month periods ended September 30, 2007 only include results from InfraSource s operations for one month. Similar to
Quanta, InfraSource provided specialized infrastructure contracting services to the electric power, gas and
telecommunications industries primarily in the United States. The acquisition enhanced and expanded Quanta s
capabilities in its existing service areas and added the Dark Fiber segment.

On August 31, 2007, Quanta sold the operating assets associated with the business of Environmental Professional
Associates, Limited (EPA), a Quanta subsidiary. Accordingly, Quanta has presented EPA s results of operations for the
2007 periods as a discontinued operation in the accompanying consolidated statements of operations.

Interim Condensed Consolidated Financial Information

These unaudited condensed consolidated financial statements have been prepared pursuant to the rules of the
Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC). Certain information and footnote disclosures, normally included in
annual financial statements prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States,
have been condensed or omitted pursuant to those rules and regulations. Quanta believes that the disclosures made are
adequate to make the information presented not misleading. In the opinion of management, all adjustments, consisting
only of normal recurring adjustments, necessary to fairly state the financial position, results of operations and cash
flows with respect to the interim consolidated financial statements have been included. The results of operations for
the interim periods are not necessarily indicative of the results for the entire fiscal year. The results of Quanta
historically have been subject to significant seasonal fluctuations.

Quanta recommends that these unaudited condensed consolidated financial statements be read in conjunction with the
audited consolidated financial statements and notes thereto of Quanta and its subsidiaries included in Quanta s Annual

Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2007, which was filed with the SEC on February 29, 2008.

Use of Estimates and Assumptions

Table of Contents 11
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The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States requires the use of estimates and assumptions by management in determining the reported amounts of assets
and liabilities, disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities known to exist as of the date the financial statements are
published and the reported amount of revenues and expenses recognized during the periods presented. Quanta reviews
all significant estimates affecting its consolidated financial statements on a recurring basis and records the effect of
any necessary adjustments prior to their publication. Judgments and estimates are

5
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QUANTA SERVICES INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

based on Quanta s beliefs and assumptions derived from information available at the time such judgments and
estimates are made. Uncertainties with respect to such estimates and assumptions are inherent in the preparation of
financial statements. Estimates are primarily used in Quanta s assessment of the allowance for doubtful accounts,
valuation of inventory, useful lives of assets, fair value assumptions in analyzing goodwill, other intangibles and
long-lived asset impairments, self-insured claims liabilities, revenue recognition for construction contracts and for
dark fiber licensing, share-based compensation, provision for income taxes and purchase price allocations.

Reclassifications

Certain reclassifications have been made in prior years financial statements to conform to classifications used in the
current year.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include interest-bearing demand deposits and investment grade commercial paper with
original maturities of three months or less and are carried at cost, which approximates fair value. As of December 31,
2007 and September 30, 2008, cash held in domestic bank accounts was approximately $405.4 million and

$260.0 million and cash held in foreign bank accounts was approximately $1.7 million and $6.4 million.

Short-Term Investments

Quanta held no short-term investments as of December 31, 2007 or September 30, 2008; however, during the first
quarter of 2007, Quanta invested from time to time in variable rate demand notes (VRDNs), which were classified as
short-term investments, available for sale when held. The income from VRDNs was tax-exempt to Quanta.

Accounts Receivable and Allowance for Doubtful Accounts

Quanta provides an allowance for doubtful accounts when collection of an account or note receivable is considered
doubtful, and receivables are written off against the allowance when deemed uncollectible. Inherent in the assessment
of the allowance for doubtful accounts are certain judgments and estimates including, among others, the customer s
access to capital, the customer s willingness or ability to pay, general economic conditions and the ongoing
relationship with the customer. Under certain circumstances such as foreclosures or negotiated settlements, Quanta
may take title to the underlying assets in lieu of cash in settlement of receivables. Material changes in Quanta s
customers business or cash flows, which may be further impacted by the current financial crisis and volatility of the
markets, could affect its ability to collect amounts due from them. As of September 30, 2008, Quanta had total
allowances for doubtful accounts of approximately $6.0 million. Should customers experience financial difficulties or
file for bankruptcy, or should anticipated recoveries relating to receivables in existing bankruptcies or other workout
situations fail to materialize, Quanta could experience reduced cash flows and losses in excess of current allowances
provided.

The balances billed but not paid by customers pursuant to retainage provisions in certain contracts will be due upon
completion of the contracts and acceptance by the customer. Based on Quanta s experience with similar contracts in
recent years, the majority of the retainage balances at each balance sheet date will be collected within the subsequent
fiscal year. Current retainage balances as of December 31, 2007 and September 30, 2008 were approximately

Table of Contents 13
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$60.2 million and $91.6 million and are included in accounts receivable. Retainage balances with settlement dates
beyond the next twelve months are included in other assets, net and as of December 31, 2007 and September 30, 2008
were $2.1 million and $5.3 million.

Within accounts receivable, Quanta recognizes unbilled receivables in circumstances such as when revenues have
been earned and recorded but the amount cannot be billed under the terms of the contract until a later date,

6
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QUANTA SERVICES INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

costs have been incurred but are yet to be billed under cost-reimbursement type contracts, or amounts arise from
routine lags in billing (for example, work completed in one month but not billed until the next month). These balances
do not include revenues accrued for work performed under fixed price contracts as these amounts are recorded as costs
and estimated earnings in excess of billings on uncompleted contracts. At December 31, 2007 and September 30,
2008, the balances of unbilled receivables included in accounts receivable were approximately $132.3 million and
$212.8 million.

As of December 31, 2007, other assets, net included accounts and notes receivable due from a customer relating to the
construction of independent power plants. During 2006, the underlying assets which had secured these notes
receivable were sold pursuant to liquidation proceedings and the net proceeds were being held by a trustee. Quanta
recorded allowances for a significant portion of these notes receivable in prior periods. As of December 31, 2007, the
collection of amounts owed Quanta were subject to further legal proceedings; however, in March 2008, the parties
reached a settlement resulting in the payment of the net receivable amount and the release of any future claims against
Quanta. The remaining note receivable balance was written off against the related allowance of approximately

$43.0 million in March 2008, without any significant impact to Quanta s results of operations for the nine months
ended September 30, 2008.

Income Taxes

Quanta follows the liability method of accounting for income taxes in accordance with Statement of Financial
Accounting Standards (SFAS) No. 109, Accounting for Income Taxes. Under this method, deferred tax assets and
liabilities are recorded for future tax consequences of temporary differences between the financial reporting and tax
bases of assets and liabilities, and are measured using the enacted tax rates and laws that are expected to be in effect
when the underlying assets or liabilities are recovered or settled.

Quanta regularly evaluates valuation allowances established for deferred tax assets for which future realization is
uncertain. The estimation of required valuation allowances includes estimates of future taxable income. The ultimate
realization of deferred tax assets is dependent upon the generation of future taxable income during the periods in
which those temporary differences become deductible. Quanta considers projected future taxable income and tax
planning strategies in making this assessment. If actual future taxable income differs from these estimates, Quanta
may not realize deferred tax assets to the extent estimated.

Quanta accounts for uncertain tax positions in accordance with Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB)
Interpretation No. 48, Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes An Interpretation of SFAS No. 109, Accounting
for Income Taxes (FIN No. 48). FIN No. 48 prescribes a comprehensive model for how companies should recognize,
measure, present and disclose in their financial statements uncertain tax positions taken or to be taken on a tax return.

As of September 30, 2008, the total amount of unrecognized tax benefits relating to uncertain tax positions was
$56.7 million, an increase from December 31, 2007 of $7.4 million related to tax positions expected to be taken

for 2008. Additionally, for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2008, Quanta recognized $1.2 million and
$4.0 million of interest and penalties in the provision for income taxes. Quanta believes that it is reasonably possible
that within the next 12 months unrecognized tax benefits will decrease $16.5 million to $18.3 million due to the
expiration of certain statutes of limitations.

Table of Contents 15
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The income tax laws and regulations are voluminous and often ambiguous. As such, Quanta is required to make many
subjective assumptions and judgments regarding its tax positions that could materially affect amounts recognized in its
future consolidated balance sheets and statements of operations.

Quanta is subject to income tax in the United States, multiple state jurisdictions and a few foreign jurisdictions.
Quanta does not consider any state in which it does business to be a major tax jurisdiction under FIN No. 48.
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QUANTA SERVICES INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
Revenue Recognition

Infrastructure Services Quanta designs, installs and maintains networks for the electric power, gas,
telecommunications and cable television industries, as well as provides various ancillary services to commercial,
industrial and governmental entities. These services may be provided pursuant to master service agreements, repair
and maintenance contracts and fixed price and non-fixed price installation contracts. Pricing under these contracts may
be competitive unit price, cost-plus/hourly (or time and materials basis) or fixed price (or lump sum basis), and the
final terms and prices of these contracts are frequently negotiated with the customer. Under unit-based contracts, the
utilization of an output-based measurement is appropriate for revenue recognition. Under these contracts, Quanta
recognizes revenue when units are completed based on pricing established between Quanta and the customer for each
unit of delivery, which best reflects the pattern in which the obligation to the customer is fulfilled. Under
cost-plus/hourly and time and materials type contracts, Quanta recognizes revenue on an input-basis, as labor hours
are incurred and services are performed.

Revenues from fixed price contracts are recognized using the percentage-of-completion method, measured by the
percentage of costs incurred to date to total estimated costs for each contract. These contracts provide for a fixed
amount of revenues for the entire project. Such contracts provide that the customer accept completion of progress to
date and compensate Quanta for services rendered, measured in terms of units installed, hours expended or some other
measure of progress. Contract costs include all direct material, labor and subcontract costs and those indirect costs
related to contract performance, such as indirect labor, supplies, tools, repairs and depreciation costs. Much of the
materials associated with Quanta s work are owner-furnished and are therefore not included in contract revenues and
costs. The cost estimation process is based on the professional knowledge and experience of Quanta s engineers,
project managers and financial professionals. Changes in job performance, job conditions and final contract
settlements are factors that influence management s assessment of the total estimated costs to complete those contracts
and therefore, Quanta s profit recognition. Changes in these factors may result in revisions to costs and income, and
their effects are recognized in the period in which the revisions are determined. Provisions for the total estimated
losses on uncompleted contracts are made in the period in which such losses are determined.

Quanta may incur costs subject to change orders, whether approved or unapproved by the customer, and/or claims
related to certain contracts. Quanta determines the probability that such costs will be recovered based upon evidence
such as past practices with the customer, specific discussions or preliminary negotiations with the customer or verbal
approvals. Quanta treats items as a cost of contract performance in the period incurred if it is not probable that the
costs will be recovered or will recognize revenue if it is probable that the contract price will be adjusted and can be
reliably estimated.

The current asset Costs and estimated earnings in excess of billings on uncompleted contracts represents revenues
recognized in excess of amounts billed for fixed price contracts. The current liability Billings in excess of costs and
estimated earnings on uncompleted contracts represents billings in excess of revenues recognized for fixed price
contracts.

Dark Fiber Quanta has fiber-optic facility licensing agreements with various customers, pursuant to which it
recognizes revenues, including any initial fees or advance billings, ratably over the expected length of the agreements,
including probable renewal periods. As of December 31, 2007 and September 30, 2008, initial fees and advanced
billings on these licensing agreements not yet recorded in revenue were $23.2 million and $31.8 million and are
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recognized as deferred revenue, with $15.6 million and $22.4 million considered to be long-term and included in other
non-current liabilities.
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QUANTA SERVICES INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
Dark Fiber Licensing

The Dark Fiber segment constructs and licenses the right to use fiber-optic telecommunications facilities to its
customers pursuant to licensing agreements, typically with terms from five to twenty-five years, inclusive of certain
renewal options. Under those agreements, customers are provided the right to use a portion of the capacity of a
fiber-optic facility, with the facility owned and maintained by Quanta. Minimum future licensing revenue expected to
be received by Quanta pursuant to these agreements at September 30, 2008 are as follows (in thousands):

Minimum
Future

Licensing

Revenues
Year Ending December 31
Remainder of 2008 $ 10,584
2009 38,941
2010 32,027
2011 24,211
2012 17,759
Thereafter 53,666
Fixed non-cancelable minimum licensing revenues $ 177,188

Stock-Based Compensation

Effective January 1, 2006, Quanta adopted SFAS No. 123 (revised 2004), Share-Based Payment (SFAS No. 123(R),
using the modified prospective method of adoption, which requires recognition of compensation expense for all
stock-based compensation beginning on the effective date. Under this method of accounting, compensation cost for
stock-based compensation awards is based on the fair value of the awards granted, net of estimated forfeitures, at the
date of grant. Quanta calculates the fair value of stock options using the Black-Scholes option pricing model. The fair
value of restricted stock awards is determined based on the number of shares granted and the closing price of Quanta s
common stock on the date of the grant. Forfeitures are estimated based upon historical activity. The resulting
compensation expense from discretionary awards is recognized on a straight-line basis over the requisite service
period, which is generally the vesting period, while compensation expense from performance based awards is
recognized using the graded vesting method over the requisite service period. SFAS No. 123(R) requires the cash
flows resulting from the tax deductions in excess of the compensation cost recognized during the applicable period be
classified as financing cash flows.

New Accounting Pronouncements

In September 2006, the FASB issued SFAS No. 157, Fair Value Measurements. SFAS No. 157 defines fair value,
establishes methods used to measure fair value and expands disclosure requirements about fair value measurements.
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SFAS No. 157 is effective for financial statements issued for fiscal years beginning after November 15, 2007, and
interim periods within those fiscal periods, as it relates to financial assets and liabilities, as well as for any

non-financial assets and liabilities that are carried at fair value. SFAS No. 157 also requires certain tabular disclosures
related to the application of SFAS No. 144, Accounting for Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets and

SFAS No. 142, Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets. On November 14, 2007, the FASB provided a one year deferral
for the implementation of SFAS No. 157 for non-financial assets and liabilities. SFAS No. 157 excludes from its

scope SFAS No. 123(R) and its related interpretive accounting pronouncements that address share-based payment
transactions. Quanta adopted SFAS No. 157 on January 1, 2008 as it applies to its

9
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QUANTA SERVICES INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

financial assets and liabilities, and based on the November 14, 2007 deferral of SFAS No. 157 for non-financial assets
and liabilities, Quanta will begin following the guidance of SFAS No. 157 with respect to its non-financial assets and
liabilities in the quarter ended March 31, 2009. Quanta does not currently have any material financial assets and
liabilities recognized on its balance sheet that are impacted by the partial adoption of SFAS No. 157. Additionally,
Quanta does not currently have any material non-financial assets or liabilities that are carried at fair value on a
recurring basis; however, Quanta does have non-financial assets that are evaluated against measures of fair value on a
non-recurring or as-needed basis, including goodwill, other intangibles and long-term assets held and used. Based on
the financial and non-financial assets and liabilities on its balance sheet as of September 30, 2008, Quanta does not
expect the full adoption of SFAS No. 157 to have a material impact on its consolidated financial position, results of
operations or cash flows. In October 2008, the FASB issued FASB Staff Position FSP FAS 157-3 Determining the
Fair Value of a Financial Asset When the Market for That Asset Is Not Active. FSP FAS 157-3 provides clarifying
guidance with respect to the application of SFAS No. 157 in determining the fair value of a financial asset when the
market for that asset is not active. FSP FAS 157-3 was effective upon its issuance. The application of FSP FAS 157-3
did not have a material impact on Quanta s consolidated financial position, results of operations or cash flows.

On January 1, 2008, Quanta adopted SFAS No. 159, The Fair Value Option for Financial Assets and Financial
Liabilities, including an amendment of FASB No. 115. SFAS No. 159 permits entities to choose to measure at fair
value many financial instruments and certain other items that were not previously required to be measured at fair
value. Unrealized gains and losses on items for which the fair value option has been elected are reported in earnings.
SFAS No. 159 does not affect any existing accounting literature that requires certain assets and liabilities to be carried
at fair value. The adoption of SFAS No. 159 did not have any material impact on Quanta s consolidated financial
position, results of operations or cash flows.

On January 1, 2008, Quanta adopted EITF Issue No. 06-11, Accounting for Income Tax Benefits of Dividends on
Share-Based Payment Awards. EITF 06-11 requires that a realized income tax benefit from dividends or dividend
equivalent units paid on unvested restricted shares and restricted share units be reflected as an increase in contributed
surplus and as an addition to the company s excess tax benefit pool, as defined under SFAS No. 123(R). Because
Quanta did not declare any dividends during the first nine months of 2008 and does not currently anticipate declaring
dividends in the near future, the adoption of EITF 06-11 did not have any impact during the first nine months of 2008,
and is not expected to have a material impact in the near term, on Quanta s consolidated financial position, results of
operations or cash flows.

In December 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 160, Noncontrolling Interests in Consolidated Financial Statements
an amendment of ARB No. 51. SFAS No. 160 addresses the accounting and reporting framework for minority
interests by a parent company. SFAS No. 160 is to be effective for fiscal years, and interim periods within those fiscal
years, beginning on or after December 15, 2008. Accordingly, Quanta will adopt SFAS No. 160 on January 1, 2009.
As Quanta does not currently have any subsidiaries with non-controlling interests, the adoption of SFAS No. 160 is
not anticipated to have a material impact on its consolidated financial position, results of operations or cash flows.

In December 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 141(R), Business Combinations. SFAS No. 141(R) is effective for
fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2008. Earlier application is prohibited. Assets and liabilities that arose from
business combinations occurring prior to the adoption of SFAS No. 141(R) cannot be adjusted upon the adoption of
SFAS No. 141(R). SFAS No. 141(R) requires the acquiring entity in a business combination to recognize all (and
only) the assets acquired and liabilities assumed in the business combination; establishes the acquisition date as the
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measurement date to determine the fair value for all assets acquired and liabilities assumed; and requires the acquirer
to disclose to investors and other users all of the information needed to evaluate and understand the nature and
financial effect of the business combination. As it relates to recognizing all (and only) the assets acquired and
liabilities assumed in a business combination, costs an acquirer expects but is not obligated to incur in the future to
exit an activity of an acquiree or to terminate or relocate an acquiree s employees are not
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liabilities at the acquisition date but must be expensed in accordance with other applicable generally accepted
accounting principles. If the initial accounting for a business combination is incomplete by the end of the reporting
period in which the combination occurs, the acquirer must report in its financial statements provisional amounts for
the items for which the accounting is incomplete. During the measurement period, which must not exceed one year
from the acquisition date, the acquirer will retrospectively adjust the provisional amounts recognized at the acquisition
date to reflect new information obtained about facts and circumstances that existed as of the acquisition date that, if
known, would have affected the measurement of the amounts recognized as of that date. The acquirer will be required
to expense all acquisition-related costs in the periods such costs are incurred, other than costs to issue debt or equity
securities in connection with the acquisition. Quanta does not expect SFAS No. 141(R) to have an impact on Quanta s
consolidated financial position, results of operations or cash flows at the date of adoption, but it could have a material
impact on its consolidated financial position, results of operations or cash flows in future periods when it is applied to
acquisitions that occur in 2009 and beyond.

In December 2007, the SEC published Staff Accounting Bulletin (SAB) No. 110 (SAB 110). SAB 110 expresses the
views of the SEC staff regarding the use of a simplified method, as discussed in SAB No. 107 (SAB 107), in
developing an estimate of the expected term of plain vanilla share options in accordance with SFAS No. 123(R). In
particular, the SEC staff indicated in SAB 107 that it will accept a company s election to use the simplified method,
regardless of whether the company has sufficient information to make more refined estimates of the expected term.
However, the SEC staff stated in SAB 107 that it would not expect a company to use the simplified method for share
option grants after December 31, 2007. In SAB 110, the SEC staff states that they would continue to accept, under
certain circumstances, the use of the simplified method beyond December 31, 2007. Because Quanta currently does
not anticipate issuing stock options in the near future, SAB 110 is not anticipated to have a material impact on its
consolidated financial position, results of operations or cash flows in the near term.

In March 2008, the FASB issued SFAS No. 161, Disclosures about Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities

An Amendment of FASB No. 133. SFAS No. 161 requires enhanced disclosures to enable investors to better
understand how a reporting entity s derivative instruments and hedging activities impact the entity s financial position,
financial performance and cash flows. SFAS No. 161 is effective for financial statements issued after November 15,
2008, including interim financial statements. Although early application is encouraged, Quanta will adopt

SFAS No. 161 on January 1, 2009. As Quanta has not entered into any material derivatives or hedging activities,

SFAS No. 161 is not anticipated to have a material impact on Quanta s consolidated financial position, results of
operations, cash flows or disclosures.

In April 2008, the FASB issued FSP 142-3, Determination of the Useful Life of Intangible Assets. FSP 142-3 amends
the factors that should be considered in developing renewal or extension assumptions used to determine the useful life
of a recognized intangible asset under SFAS No. 142. The intent of FSP 142-3 is to improve the consistency between
the useful life of an intangible asset and the period of expected cash flows used to measure its fair value and to

enhance existing disclosure requirements relating to intangible assets. FSP 142-3 is effective for fiscal years beginning
after December 15, 2008 and should be applied prospectively to intangible assets acquired after the effective date.

Early adoption is not permitted. Accordingly, Quanta will adopt FSP 142-3 on January 1, 2009. Quanta does not
anticipate FSP 142-3 to have an impact on its consolidated financial position, results of operations or cash flows at the
date of adoption, but it could have a material impact on its consolidated financial position, results of operations or

cash flows in future periods.
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In May 2008, the FASB issued SFAS No. 162, The Hierarchy of Generally Accepted Accounting Principles.

SFAS No. 162 identifies the sources of accounting principles and the framework for selecting the principles to be used
in the preparation of financial statements of non-governmental entities that are presented in conformity with generally
accepted accounting principles in the United States. SFAS No. 162 will be effective 60 days following the SEC s
approval of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board amendments to AU Section 411, The Meaning of
Present Fairly in Conformity With Generally Accepted Accounting Principles. Quanta will adopt
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SFAS No. 162 once it is effective, but has not yet determined the impact, if any, on its consolidated financial
statements.

In May 2008, the FASB issued FSP APB 14-1, Accounting for Convertible Debt Instruments That May Be Settled in
Cash upon Conversion (Including Partial Cash Settlement). FSP APB 14-1 will require issuers of convertible debt
instruments within its scope to first determine the carrying amount of the liability component of the convertible debt
by measuring the fair value of a similar liability that does not have an associated equity component. Issuers will then
calculate the carrying amount of the equity component represented by the embedded conversion option by deducting
the fair value of the liability component from the initial proceeds ascribed to the convertible debt instrument as a
whole. The excess of the principal amount of the liability component over its initial fair value will be amortized to
interest expense using the effective interest method. FSP APB 14-1 is effective for financial statements issued for
fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2008, and interim periods within those fiscal years. Accordingly, Quanta
will adopt FSP APB 14-1 on January 1, 2009, and will apply FSP APB 14-1 retrospectively to all periods presented.
For periods prior to those presented, Quanta will record a cumulative effect of the change in accounting principle as of
the beginning of the first period presented. The impact of FSP APB 14-1 may be material to Quanta s results of
operations during certain periods but is not expected to materially impact its cash flows. Quanta is in the process of
determining the cumulative effect of the change in accounting principle and the impact to its consolidated financial
position, results of operations and cash flows for all periods presented.

In June 2008, the FASB issued Staff Position EITF 03-6-1, Determining Whether Instruments Granted in Share-Based
Payment Transactions Are Participating Securities. EITF 03-6-1 states that unvested share-based payment awards that
contain non-forfeitable rights to dividends or dividend equivalents (whether paid or unpaid) are participating securities
under the definition of SFAS No. 128, Earnings per Share and should be included in the computation of both basic
and diluted earnings per share. EITF 03-6-1 is effective for financial statements issued for fiscal years beginning after
December 15, 2008 and interim periods within those years. Accordingly, Quanta will adopt EITF 03-6-1 on January 1,
2009. All prior period earnings per share data presented will be adjusted retrospectively to conform to the provisions

of EITF 03-6-1. Early application is not permitted. Quanta has granted unvested share-based payment awards that

have non-forfeitable rights to dividends in the form of restricted stock awards, which are currently accounted for under
the treasury stock method in diluted earnings per share. The treasury stock method specifies that only unvested
restricted common shares that are dilutive be included in weighted average diluted shares outstanding. Under

EITF 03-6-1, Quanta will retrospectively restate earnings per share data for prior periods beginning in the first quarter
of 2009 to include all unvested restricted common shares as participating securities as of the date of grant. The
adoption of EITF 03-6-1 is not anticipated to have any material impact on Quanta s consolidated financial position,
results of operations or cash flows but may lower basic and diluted earnings per share amounts previously reported

due to the inclusion of the additional shares in computing these amounts.

In June 2008, the FASB ratified EITF Issue 07-5, Determining Whether an Instrument (or Embedded Feature) Is
Indexed to an Entity s Own Stock (EITF 07-5). The primary objective of EITF 07-5 is to provide guidance for
determining whether an equity-linked financial instrument or embedded feature within a contract is indexed to an
entity s own stock, which is a key criterion of the scope exception to paragraph 11(a) of SFAS No. 133, Accounting for
Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities. This criterion is also important in evaluating whether EITF 00-19,
Accounting for Derivative Financial Instruments Indexed to, and Potentially Settled in, a Company s Own Stock
applies to certain financial instruments that are not derivatives under SFAS No. 133. An equity-linked financial
instrument or embedded feature within a contract that is not considered indexed to an entity s own stock could be
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required to be classified as an asset or liability and marked-to-market through earnings. EITF 07-5 specifies a two-step
approach in evaluating whether an equity-linked financial instrument or embedded feature within a contract is indexed
to its own stock. The first step involves evaluating the instrument s contingent exercise provisions, if any, and the
second step involves evaluating the instrument s settlement provisions. EITF 07-5 is effective for financial statements
issued for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2008, and must be applied to all instruments outstanding as of the
effective date. Accordingly, Quanta will adopt EITF 07-5 on January 1, 2009,
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but has not yet determined the impact, if any, on its consolidated financial position, results of operations and cash
flows.

2. ACQUISITIONS:

InfraSource Acquisition

On August 30, 2007, Quanta acquired through the Merger all of the outstanding common stock of InfraSource. In
connection with the acquisition, Quanta issued to InfraSource s stockholders 1.223 shares of Quanta common stock for
each outstanding share of InfraSource common stock, resulting in the issuance of a total of 49,975,553 shares of
common stock for an aggregate purchase price of approximately $1.3 billion.

The following summarizes the allocation of the purchase price and estimated transaction costs related to the
InfraSource acquisition. This allocation is based on the significant use of estimates and on information that was

available to management at the time these condensed consolidated financial statements were prepared.

The following table summarizes the estimated fair values (in thousands):

August 31,
2007
Current assets $ 288,300
Non-current assets 9,277
Property and equipment 209,724
Intangible assets 158,840
Goodwill 962,020
Total assets acquired 1,628,161
Current liabilities 197,260
Long-term liabilities 156,382
Total liabilities assumed 353,642
Net assets acquired $ 1,274,519

Additionally, Quanta incurred approximately $12.1 million of costs related to the Merger which have been included in
goodwill but are not in the above purchase price allocation.

The amounts assigned to various intangible assets at August 31, 2007 related to the InfraSource acquisition are

customer relationships of $95.3 million, backlog of $50.5 million and non-compete agreements of $13.0 million. The
customer relationships are being amortized on a straight-line basis over 15.0 years, backlog is being amortized based
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on the estimated pattern of the consumption of the economic benefit over an original weighted average period of
1.3 years and the non-compete agreements are being amortized on a straight-line basis over the lives of the underlying
contracts over the original weighted average period of 2.0 years.

Goodwill represents the excess of the purchase price over the fair value of the acquired net assets. Quanta anticipates
it will continue to realize meaningful operational and cost synergies, such as enhancing the combined service
offerings, expanding the geographic reach and resource base of the combined company, improving the utilization of
personnel and fixed assets, eliminating duplicate corporate functions, as well as accelerating revenue growth through
enhanced cross-selling and marketing opportunities. Quanta believes these opportunities contribute to the recognition
of the substantial goodwill.

The following unaudited supplemental pro forma results of operations have been provided for illustrative purposes
only and do not purport to be indicative of the actual results that would have been achieved by the combined company

for the periods presented or that may be achieved by the combined company in the future.
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Future results may vary significantly from the results reflected in the following pro forma financial information
because of future events and transactions, as well as other factors. The following pro forma results of operations have
been provided for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2007 as though the Merger had been completed as
of January 1, 2007 (in thousands except per share amounts).

Three Months
Ended Nine Months Ended
September 30, 2007 September 30, 2007

Revenues $ 818,835 $ 2,383,390
Gross profit $ 138,270 $ 370,149
Selling, general and administrative expenses $ 86,064 $ 237,168
Amortization of intangible assets $ 13,936 $ 37,254
Income from continuing operations $ 40,492 $ 89,403
Net income $ 42,849 $ 92,169
Earnings per share from continuing operations:

Basic $ 0.24 $ 0.53
Fully diluted $ 0.22 $ 0.49

The pro forma combined results of operations have been prepared by adjusting the historical results of Quanta to
include the historical results of InfraSource prior to the Merger, the reduction in interest expense and interest income
as a result of the repayment of InfraSource s outstanding indebtedness on the acquisition date and certain
reclassifications to conform InfraSource s presentation to Quanta s accounting policies. The pro forma results of
operations do not include any cost savings that may result from the Merger or any estimated costs that have been or
will be incurred by Quanta to integrate the businesses. As noted above, the pro forma results of operations do not
purport to be indicative of the actual results that would have been achieved by the combined company for the periods
presented or that may be achieved by the combined company in the future. For example, Quanta recorded tax benefits
in the first and third quarters of 2007 of $15.3 million and $17.9 million primarily due to a decrease in reserves for
uncertain tax positions resulting from the settlement of a multi-year IRS audit. Additionally, InfraSource incurred
$9.3 million and $13.4 million of Merger-related costs in the three and nine months ended September 30, 2007 that
have not been eliminated in the pro forma results of operations above. Items such as these, coupled with other risk
factors that could have affected the combined company and its operations, make it difficult to use the pro forma
results of operations to project future results of operations.

Other Acquisitions

In July 2008, Quanta acquired a helicopter-assisted transmission line construction, maintenance and repair services
company for a purchase price of approximately $6.1 million, consisting of approximately $3.8 million in cash and
82,862 shares of Quanta common stock valued at approximately $2.3 million at the date of acquisition on a discounted
basis as a result of the restricted nature of the shares. The acquisition allows Quanta to augment its existing
transmission resources and better positions Quanta to meet the evolving needs of its customers, especially in
environmentally sensitive areas. The estimated fair value of the tangible assets acquired was $3.0 million, consisting
of current assets of $0.6 million and property and equipment of $2.4 million. Net tangible assets acquired were
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$2.9 million after considering the assumed liabilities of $0.1 million. The excess of the purchase price over net
tangible assets acquired was recorded as goodwill in the amount of $2.6 million and intangible assets in the amount of
$0.6 million, consisting of non-compete agreements. This allocation is based on the significant use of estimates and on
information that was available to management at the time these condensed consolidated financial statements were
prepared. Portions of the allocation of purchase price are preliminary. Accordingly, the allocation will change as
management continues to assess available information, and the impact of such changes may be material.

In April 2008, Quanta acquired a telecommunication and cable construction company for a purchase price of
approximately $37.7 million, consisting of approximately $23.7 million in cash and 593,470 shares of Quanta
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common stock valued at approximately $14.0 million at the date of acquisition on a discounted basis as a result of the
restricted nature of the shares. The acquisition allows Quanta to further expand its telecommunications and cable
capabilities in the southwestern United States. The estimated fair value of the tangible assets acquired was

$21.1 million, consisting of current assets of $14.2 million, property and equipment of $6.8 million and other
non-current assets of $0.1 million. Net tangible assets acquired were $14.3 million after considering the assumed
liabilities of $6.8 million. The excess of the purchase price over net tangible assets acquired was recorded as goodwill
in the amount of $17.5 million and intangible assets in the amount of $5.9 million, consisting of customer
relationships, backlog and a non-compete agreement. This allocation is based on the significant use of estimates and
on information that was available to management at the time these condensed consolidated financial statements were
prepared. Portions of the allocation of purchase price are preliminary. Accordingly, the allocation will change as
management continues to assess available information, and the impact of such changes may be material.

3. GOODWILL AND INTANGIBLE ASSETS:

A summary of changes in Quanta s goodwill between December 31, 2007 and September 30, 2008 is as follows (in
thousands):

Total

Balance at December 31, 2007 $ 1,355,098
Acquisition of a telecommunication and cable construction company in April 2008 17,529
Acquisition of helicopter-assisted transmission line services company in July 2008 2,624
Purchase price adjustments related to acquisitions which closed subsequent to September 30, 2007 (15,577)
Balance at September 30, 2008 $ 1,359,674
Intangible assets are comprised of (in thousands):

December 31, September 30,

2007 2008

Intangible assets:
Customer relationships $ 104,834 $ 109,474
Backlog 53,242 53,500
Non-compete agreements 14,030 15,589
Patented rights and developed technology 1,504 16,078
Total intangible assets 173,610 194,641
Accumulated amortization:
Customer relationships (4,054) (9,515)
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Backlog (14,274) (34,262)
Non-compete agreements (1,644) (5,194)
Patented rights and developed technology (943) (1,408)
Total accumulated amortization (20,915) (50,379)
Intangible assets, net $ 152,695 $ 144,262

In May 2008, Quanta acquired the rights to certain developed technology, along with pending and issued patent
protections to this technology, for approximately $14.6 million. This developed technology will enhance Quanta s
energized services capabilities and is being amortized on a straight-line basis over an estimated economic life of
approximately 13 years. The acquired technology is included in patented rights and developed technology in the above
table.
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Expenses for the amortization of intangible assets were $4.9 million and $9.0 million for the three months ended
September 30, 2007 and 2008, and $6.3 million and $29.5 million for the nine months ended September 30, 2007 and
2008. The remaining weighted average amortization period for all intangible assets as of September 30, 2008 is

11.3 years, while the remaining weighted average amortization periods for customer relationships, backlog,
non-compete agreements and the patented rights and developed technology are 13.9 years, 1.9 years, 2.8 years and
11.9 years, respectively. The estimated future aggregate amortization expense of intangible assets as of September 30,
2008 is set forth below (in thousands):

For the Fiscal Year Ended December 31,

Remainder of 2008 $ 6,733
2009 18,786
2010 13,871
2011 12,727
2012 13,526
Thereafter 78,619
Total $ 144262

4. DISCONTINUED OPERATION:

On August 31, 2007, Quanta sold the operating assets associated with the business of EPA, a Quanta subsidiary, for
approximately $6.0 million in cash. Quanta has presented EPA s results of operations for the three and nine months
ended September 30, 2007 as a discontinued operation in the accompanying condensed consolidated statements of
operations. Quanta does not allocate corporate debt or interest expense to discontinued operations. As a result of the
sale, a pre-tax gain of approximately $3.7 million was recorded in the three and nine months ended September 30,
2007 and included as income from discontinued operation in the consolidated income statements for such periods.

The amounts of revenues and pre-tax income (including the pre-tax gain of $3.7 million in the three and nine months
ended September 30, 2007) related to EPA and included in income from discontinued operation are as follows (in
thousands):

Three Months
Ended Nine Months Ended
September 30, September 30,
2007 2008 2007 2008
Revenues $ 3,392 $ $ 14,693 $
Income before income tax provision $ 3,417 $ $ 4,107 $

The assets, liabilities and cash flows associated with EPA have historically been immaterial to Quanta s balance sheet
and cash flows.
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5. STOCK-BASED COMPENSATION:
Stock Incentive Plans

Pursuant to the Quanta Services, Inc. 2007 Stock Incentive Plan (the 2007 Plan), which was adopted on May 24, 2007,
Quanta may award restricted common stock, incentive stock options and non-qualified stock options. The purpose of
the 2007 Plan is to provide directors, key employees, officers and certain consultants and advisors with additional
performance incentives by increasing their proprietary interest in Quanta. Prior to the adoption of the 2007 Plan,
Quanta had issued awards of restricted common stock and stock options under its 2001 Stock Incentive Plan (as
amended and restated March 13, 2003) (the 2001 Plan), which was terminated effective May 24, 2007, except that
outstanding awards will continue to be governed by the terms of the 2001 Plan. The 2007 Plan and the 2001 Plan are
referred to as the Quanta Plans.
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In connection with the Merger, Quanta assumed InfraSource s 2003 Omnibus Stock Incentive Plan and 2004 Omnibus
Stock Incentive Plan, in each case as amended (the InfraSource Plans). Outstanding awards of InfraSource stock
options were converted to options to acquire Quanta common stock, and outstanding awards of InfraSource restricted
common stock were converted to Quanta restricted common stock, each as described in further detail below. The
InfraSource Plans were terminated in connection with the Merger, and no further awards will be made under these
plans, although the terms of these plans will govern outstanding awards.

Stock Options

In connection with the Merger, each option to purchase shares of InfraSource common stock granted under the
InfraSource Plans that was outstanding on August 30, 2007 was converted into an option to purchase the number of
whole shares of Quanta common stock that was equal to the number of shares of InfraSource common stock subject to
that option immediately prior to the effective time of the Merger multiplied by 1.223. These options were converted
on the same terms and conditions as applied to each such option immediately prior to the Merger. The exercise price
for each InfraSource option granted was also adjusted by dividing the exercise price in effect immediately prior to the
Merger for each InfraSource option by 1.223. The former InfraSource options generally vest over four years and have
a maximum term of ten years; however, some options vested on August 30, 2007 due to change of control provisions
in place in certain InfraSource option or management agreements, and there has been and may be additional
accelerated vesting if the employment of certain option holders is terminated within a certain period following the
Merger.

In connection with the Merger, Quanta calculated the fair value of the former InfraSource stock options as of

August 30, 2007 using the Black-Scholes model. Assumptions used in this model were based on historic estimates of
both Quanta and InfraSource. Quanta estimated expected stock price volatility based on the historical volatility of
Quanta s common stock. The risk-free interest rate assumption included in the calculation is based upon observed
interest rates appropriate for the expected life of the InfraSource options. The dividend yield assumption is based on
Quanta s intent not to issue a dividend. Quanta used the simplified method to calculate expected term. Forfeitures were
estimated based on Quanta s historical experience. These assumptions remained unchanged at September 30, 2008.

August 30, 2007
Weighted Average Assumptions:
Expected volatility 40%
Dividend yield 0%
Risk-free interest rate 4.13-4.20%
Annual forfeiture rate 8%
Expected term (in years) 6.25
The following tables summarize information for all of the former InfraSource options:

Weighted

Weighted  Average
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Average Remaining Aggregate
Exercise Contractual Intrinsic
Options Price Per Life Value
(In (In
thousands) Share (In Years) thousands)
Total outstanding, December 31, 2007 1,313 $ 10.73
Granted
Exercised (601) $ 9.43
Canceled 26) $ 11.14
Total outstanding September 30, 2008 686 $ 11.84 699 §$ 10,414
As of September 30, 2008:
Fully vested options and options expected to
ultimately vest 661 $ 11.74 6.96 $ 10,097
Options exercisable 320§ 9.88 628 $ 5,638
17
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As of September 30, 2008
Stock Options Outstanding Options Exercisable
Weighted
Average
Number Remaining Weighted Number Weighted
of Stock Contractual Average of Stock Average
Options Life Exercise Options Exercise
(In (In
Range of Exercise Prices thousands) (In Years) Price thousands) Price
$3.76 - $3.76 86 5.01 $ 3.76 86 $ 3.76
$6.44 - $9.80 211 7.13 $ 9.55 66 $ 9.51
$10.63 - $13.09 106 5.62 $ 10.63 103 $ 10.63
$13.84 - $16.80 270 7.97 $ 16.23 71 $ 1599
$20.29 - $20.55 13 8.32 $ 20.38 3 $ 2038
686 329

The aggregate intrinsic value above represents the total pre-tax intrinsic value, based on Quanta s closing stock price of
$27.01 on September 30, 2008, which would have been received by the option holders had all option holders

exercised their options as of that date. Former InfraSource options exercised during the nine months ended

September 30, 2008 had an intrinsic value of $11.1 million, generated $5.7 million of cash proceeds and generated

$4.3 million of associated income tax benefit. When stock options are exercised, Quanta has historically issued new
shares to the option holders.

As of September 30, 2008, there was approximately $3.5 million of total unrecognized compensation cost related to
unvested stock options issued under the InfraSource Plans. That cost is expected to be recognized over a weighted
average period of 1.6 years. The total fair value of the stock options issued under the InfraSource Plans that vested
during the nine months ended September 30, 2008 was $2.0 million.

Restricted Stock

Under the Quanta Plans, Quanta has issued restricted common stock at the fair market value of the common stock as
of the date of issuance. The shares of restricted common stock issued are subject to forfeiture, restrictions on transfer
and certain other conditions until they vest, which generally occurs over three years in equal annual installments.
During the restriction period, the restricted stockholders are entitled to vote and receive dividends on such shares.

In connection with the Merger, each share of restricted common stock issued under the InfraSource Plans that was
outstanding on August 30, 2007 was converted into 1.223 restricted shares of Quanta common stock. The shares of
restricted common stock issued under the InfraSource Plans remain subject to forfeiture, restrictions on transfer and
certain other conditions of the awards until they vest, which generally occurs in equal annual installments over three
or four year periods commencing on the first anniversary of the grant date, with certain exceptions. During the
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restriction period, the restricted stockholders are entitled to vote and receive dividends on such shares. The vesting
period for some holders of restricted stock accelerated and the forfeiture and transfer restrictions lapsed when their
employment was terminated following the Merger.

During the three months ended September 30, 2007 and 2008, Quanta granted 7,675 and 7,098 shares of restricted
stock under the 2007 Plan with a weighted average grant price of $27.16 and $31.62. During the nine months ended
September 30, 2007 and 2008, Quanta granted approximately 0.4 million and 0.8 million shares of restricted stock
under the Quanta Plans with a weighted average grant price of $25.70 and $23.69. Additionally, during the three
months ended September 30, 2007 and 2008, approximately 11,182 and 17,066 shares vested with an approximate fair
value at the time of vesting of $0.3 million and $0.5 million. During the nine months ended September 30, 2007 and
2008, approximately 0.6 million and 0.6 million shares vested with an approximate fair value at the time of vesting of
$16.1 million and $15.0 million. Amounts granted in 2007 include restricted shares
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that were issued on August 30, 2007 upon conversion of the InfraSource restricted stock in connection with the
Merger, and vested amounts in 2007 include restricted shares that vested under the InfraSource Plans following the

Merger.

A summary of the restricted stock activity for the nine months ended September 30, 2008 is as follows (shares in
thousands):

Weighted
Average
Grant Date
Fair Value
Shares (Per Share)
Unvested at December 31, 2007 1,129 $ 15.84
Granted 805 $ 23.69
Vested (578) $ 15.29
Forfeited 49 $ 22.56
Unvested at September 30, 2008 1,307 $ 22.70

As of September 30, 2008, there was approximately $19.3 million of total unrecognized compensation cost related to
unvested restricted stock granted to both employees and non-employees. That cost is expected to be recognized over a
weighted average period of 1.93 years.

Compensation expense is measured based on the fair value of the restricted stock. For discretionary awards,
compensation expense is recognized on a straight-line basis over the requisite service period, which is generally the
vesting period, and for performance based awards, compensation expense is recognized using the graded vesting
method over the requisite service period. The fair value of the restricted stock is determined based on the number of
shares granted and the closing price of Quanta s common stock on the date of grant. SFAS No. 123(R) requires
estimating future forfeitures in determining the period expense, rather than recording forfeitures when they occur as
previously permitted. Quanta uses historical data to estimate the forfeiture rate. The estimate of unrecognized
compensation cost uses the expected forfeiture rate; however, the estimate may not necessarily represent the value that
will ultimately be realized as compensation expense.
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Non-Cash Compensation Expense and Related Tax Benefits
The amounts of non-cash compensation expense and related tax benefits, as well as the amount of actual tax benefits

related to vested restricted stock and options exercised and Quanta s and InfraSource s employee stock purchase plans,
both of which have been terminated, are as follows (in thousands):

Three Months Ended Nine Months Ended

September 30, September 30,

2007 2008 2007 2008
Non-cash compensation expense related to restricted stock $ 2,127 $ 3,432 $ 5,748 $ 9,879
Non-cash compensation expense related to stock options 337 611 337 2,523
Total stock-based compensation included in selling, general
and administrative expenses $ 2,464 $ 4,043 $ 6,085 $ 12,402
Actual tax benefit for the tax deductions from vested
restricted stock $ 202 $ 209 $ 2,542 $ 1,635
Actual tax benefit for the tax deductions from options
exercised 1,357 211 4,567 4,490
Actual tax benefit related to the employee stock purchase
plans 37
Actual tax benefit related to stock-based compensation
expense 1,559 420 7,146 6,125
Income tax benefit related to non-cash compensation expense 256 1,577 2,596 4,837
Total tax benefit related to stock-based compensation expense $ 1,815 $ 1,997 $ 9,742 $ 10,962
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6. PER SHARE INFORMATION:

(Continued)

Basic earnings per share is computed using the weighted average number of common shares outstanding during the
period, and diluted earnings per share is computed using the weighted average number of common shares outstanding
during the period adjusted for all potentially dilutive common stock equivalents, except in cases where the effect of
the common stock equivalent would be antidilutive. The weighted average number of shares used to compute basic

and diluted earnings per share is illustrated below (in thousands, except per share amounts):

Income for basic earnings per share:
From continuing operations
From discontinued operation

Net income

Weighted average shares outstanding for basic earnings
per share

Basic earnings per share:
From continuing operations
From discontinued operation

Net income
Income for diluted earnings per share:

Income from continuing operations
Effect of convertible subordinated notes under the

if-converted method interest expense addback, net of

taxes

Income from continuing operations for diluted earnings
per share
Income from discontinued operation

Net income for diluted earnings per share
Calculation of weighted average shares for diluted
earnings per share:

Weighted average shares outstanding for basic earnings
per share
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Three Months Ended
September 30,
2007 2008
$ 46,950 $ 54,858
2,371
$ 497321 $ 54,858
136,279 171,693
$ 0.34 $ 0.32
0.02
$ 0.36 $ 0.32
$ 46,950 $ 54,858
3,198 3,181
50,148 58,039
2,371
$ 52,519 $ 58,039
136,279 171,693

Nine Months Ended
September 30,
2007 2008
99,599 119,628
2,791
102,390 119,628
124,362 170,938
0.80 0.70
0.02
0.82 0.70
99,599 119,628
9,596 9,578
109,195 129,206
2,791
111,986 129,206
124,362 170,938
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Effect of dilutive stock options and restricted stock 939 801 815
Effect of convertible subordinated notes under the
if-converted method weighted convertible shares

issuable

30,651 30,637 30,651

Weighted average shares outstanding for diluted

earnings per share

Diluted earnings per share:
From continuing operations
From discontinued operation

Net income

167,869 203,131 155,828

$ 0.30 $ 0.29 $ 0.70
0.01 0.02

$ 0.31 $ 0.29 $ 0.72

709

30,645

202,292

0.64

0.64

For the three months ended September 30, 2007 and 2008, stock options and restricted stock of approximately
0.7 million and 0.8 million shares, respectively, were excluded from the computation of diluted earnings per share
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because the grant prices of these common stock equivalents were greater than the average market price of Quanta s
common stock. For the nine months ended September 30, 2007 and 2008, stock options and restricted stock of
approximately 0.7 million and 0.9 million shares, respectively, were excluded from the computation of diluted

earnings per share because the grant prices of these common stock equivalents were greater than the average market
price of Quanta s common stock. For the nine months ended September 30, 2007, the effect of assuming conversion of
the 4.0% convertible subordinated notes would be antidilutive, and accordingly were excluded from the calculation of
diluted earnings per share. The 4.0% convertible subordinated notes were repaid on July 2, 2007, and therefore were
not outstanding for any material portion of the three months ended September 30, 2007.

7. DEBT:
Credit Facility

Quanta has a credit facility with various lenders that provides for a $475.0 million senior secured revolving credit
facility maturing on September 19, 2012. Subject to the conditions specified in the credit facility and receipt of
additional commitments from new or existing lenders, Quanta has the option to increase the revolving commitments
under the credit facility by up to an additional $125.0 million from time to time, although under current market
conditions, it is unlikely Quanta would be able to obtain such additional commitments. Borrowings under the credit
facility are to be used for working capital, capital expenditures and other general corporate purposes. The entire
unused portion of the credit facility is available for the issuance of letters of credit.

As of September 30, 2008, Quanta had approximately $197.0 million of letters of credit issued under the credit facility
and no outstanding revolving loans. The remaining $278.0 million was available for revolving loans or issuing new
letters of credit. Amounts borrowed under the credit facility bear interest, at Quanta s option, at a rate equal to either
(a) the Eurodollar Rate (as defined in the credit facility) plus 0.875% to 1.75%, as determined by the ratio of Quanta s
total funded debt to consolidated EBITDA (as defined in the credit facility), or (b) the base rate (as described below)
plus 0.00% to 0.75%, as determined by the ratio of Quanta s total funded debt to consolidated EBITDA. Letters of
credit issued under the credit facility are subject to a letter of credit fee of 0.875% to 1.75%, based on the ratio of
Quanta s total funded debt to consolidated EBITDA. Quanta is also subject to a commitment fee of 0.15% to 0.35%,
based on the ratio of its total funded debt to consolidated EBITDA, on any unused availability under the credit facility.
The base rate equals the higher of (i) the Federal Funds Rate (as defined in the credit facility) plus 1/2 of 1% or (ii) the
bank s prime rate.

The credit facility contains certain covenants, including covenants with respect to maximum funded debt to
consolidated EBITDA, maximum senior debt to consolidated EBITDA and minimum interest coverage, in each case
as specified in the credit facility. For purposes of calculating the maximum funded debt to consolidated EBITDA ratio
and the maximum senior debt to consolidated EBITDA ratio, Quanta s maximum funded debt and maximum senior
debt are reduced by all cash and cash equivalents (as defined in the credit facility) held by Quanta in excess of

$25.0 million. As of September 30, 2008, Quanta was in compliance with all of its covenants. The credit facility limits
certain acquisitions, mergers and consolidations, capital expenditures, asset sales and prepayments of indebtedness
and, subject to certain exceptions, prohibits liens on material assets. The credit facility also limits the payment of
dividends and stock repurchase programs in any fiscal year except those payments or other distributions payable
solely in capital stock. The credit facility provides for customary events of default and carries cross-default provisions
with all of Quanta s existing subordinated notes, its continuing indemnity and security agreement with its sureties and
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all of its other debt instruments exceeding $15.0 million in borrowings. If an event of default (as defined in the credit
facility) occurs and is continuing, on the terms and subject to the conditions set forth in the credit facility, amounts
outstanding under the credit facility may be accelerated and may become or be declared immediately due and payable.

The credit facility is secured by a pledge of all of the capital stock of Quanta s U.S. subsidiaries, 65% of the capital
stock of its foreign subsidiaries and substantially all of its assets. Quanta s U.S. subsidiaries guarantee the repayment
of all amounts due under the credit facility. Quanta s obligations under the credit facility constitute designated senior
indebtedness under its 3.75% and 4.5% convertible subordinated notes.
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4.0% Convertible Subordinated Notes

During the first half of 2007, Quanta had outstanding $33.3 million aggregate principal amount of 4.0% convertible
subordinated notes (4.0% Notes), which matured on July 1, 2007. The outstanding principal balance of the
4.0% Notes plus accrued interest was repaid on July 2, 2007, the first business day after the maturity date.

4.5% Convertible Subordinated Notes

At September 30, 2008, Quanta had outstanding approximately $268.8 million aggregate principal amount of 4.5%
convertible subordinated notes due 2023 (4.5% Notes). As described below, none of the 4.5% Notes remain
outstanding. The resale of the 4.5% Notes and the shares issuable upon their conversion was registered for the benefit
of the holders in a shelf registration statement filed with the SEC. The outstanding 4.5% Notes required semi-annual
interest payments on April 1 and October 1 until maturity.

The indenture under which the 4.5% Notes were issued provided the holders of the notes the right to require Quanta to
repurchase in cash, on October 1, 2008, all or some of their notes at the principal amount thereof plus accrued and
unpaid interest. As a result of this repurchase right, Quanta reclassified approximately $270.0 million outstanding
aggregate principal amount of the 4.5% Notes as a current obligation in October 2007.

The indenture also provided that, beginning October 8, 2008, Quanta had the right to redeem for cash some or all of
the 4.5% Notes at the principal amount thereof plus accrued and unpaid interest. On August 27, 2008, Quanta notified
the registered holders of the 4.5% Notes that it would redeem the notes on October 8, 2008. Upon notification of the
redemption and until October 6, 2008, the holders of the 4.5% Notes had the right to convert all or a portion of the
principal amount of their notes to shares of Quanta s common stock at a conversion rate of 8§9.7989 shares of common
stock for each $1,000 principal amount of notes converted, which equates to a conversion price of $11.14 per share.

Following the redemption notice and prior to September 30, 2008, the holders of $1.2 million aggregate principal
amount of the 4.5% Notes elected to convert their notes, resulting in the issuance of 107,846 shares of Quanta
common stock in the third quarter of 2008. After September 30, 2008, the holders of an additional $268.6 million
aggregate principal amount of the 4.5% Notes elected to convert their notes, resulting in the issuance of

24,121,935 shares of Quanta common stock in the fourth quarter of 2008. Quanta also repurchased

$106,000 aggregate principal amount of the 4.5% Notes on October 1, 2008 pursuant to the holders election and
redeemed for cash $49,000 aggregate principal amount of the notes, plus accrued and unpaid interest, on October 8,
2008. As a result of these transactions, none of the 4.5% Notes remain outstanding.

3.75% Convertible Subordinated Notes

At September 30, 2008, Quanta had outstanding $143.8 million aggregate principal amount of 3.75% convertible
subordinated notes due 2026 (3.75% Notes). The resale of the notes and the shares issuable upon conversion thereof
was registered for the benefit of the holders in a shelf registration statement filed with the SEC. The 3.75% Notes
mature on April 30, 2026 and bear interest at the annual rate of 3.75%, payable semi-annually on April 30 and
October 30, until maturity.
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The 3.75% Notes are convertible into Quanta s common stock, based on an initial conversion rate of 44.6229 shares of
Quanta s common stock per $1,000 principal amount of 3.75% Notes (which is equal to an initial conversion price of
approximately $22.41 per share), subject to adjustment as a result of certain events. The 3.75% Notes are convertible
by the holder (i) during any fiscal quarter if the closing price of Quanta s common stock is greater than 130% of the
conversion price for at least 20 trading days in the period of 30 consecutive trading days ending on the last trading day
of the immediately preceding fiscal quarter, (ii) upon Quanta calling the 3.75% Notes for redemption, (iii) upon the
occurrence of specified distributions to holders of Quanta s common stock or specified corporate transactions or (iv) at
any time on or after March 1, 2026 until the business day immediately preceding the maturity date of the

3.75% Notes. The 3.75% Notes are not presently convertible,
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although they have been convertible in certain prior quarters as a result of the satisfaction of the market price

condition in clause (i) above. If the 3.75% Notes become convertible under any of these circumstances, Quanta has the
option to deliver cash, shares of Quanta s common stock or a combination thereof, with the amount of cash determined
in accordance with the terms of the indenture under which the notes were issued. Conversions that may occur in the
future could result in the recording of losses on extinguishment of debt if the conversions are settled in cash for an
amount in excess of the principal amount. The holders of the 3.75% Notes who convert their notes in connection with
certain change in control transactions, as defined in the indenture, may be entitled to a make whole premium in the
form of an increase in the conversion rate. In the event of a change in control, in lieu of paying holders a make whole
premium, if applicable, Quanta may elect, in some circumstances, to adjust the conversion rate and related conversion
obligations so that the 3.75% Notes are convertible into shares of the acquiring or surviving company.

Beginning on April 30, 2010 until April 30, 2013, Quanta may redeem for cash all or part of the 3.75% Notes at a
price equal to 100% of the principal amount plus accrued and unpaid interest, if the closing price of Quanta s common
stock is equal to or greater than 130% of the conversion price then in effect for the 3.75% Notes for at least 20 trading
days in the 30 consecutive trading day period ending on the trading day immediately prior to the date of mailing of the
notice of redemption. In addition, Quanta may redeem for cash all or part of the 3.75% Notes at any time on or after
April 30, 2010 at certain redemption prices, plus accrued and unpaid interest. Beginning with the six-month interest
period commencing on April 30, 2010, and for each six-month interest period thereafter, Quanta will be required to
pay contingent interest on any outstanding 3.75% Notes during the applicable interest period if the average trading
price of the 3.75% Notes reaches a specified threshold. The contingent interest payable within any applicable interest
period will equal an annual rate of 0.25% of the average trading price of the 3.75% Notes during a five trading day
reference period.

The holders of the 3.75% Notes may require Quanta to repurchase all or a part of the notes in cash on each of

April 30, 2013, April 30, 2016 and April 30, 2021, and in the event of a change in control of Quanta, as defined in the
indenture, at a purchase price equal to 100% of the principal amount of the 3.75% Notes plus accrued and unpaid
interest. The 3.75% Notes carry cross-default provisions with Quanta s other debt instruments exceeding $20.0 million
in borrowings, which includes Quanta s existing credit facility.

Fair Value of Convertible Subordinated Notes

The fair market value of Quanta s convertible subordinated notes is subject to interest rate risk because of their fixed
interest rates and market risk due to the convertible feature of the convertible subordinated notes. Generally, the fair
market value of fixed interest rate debt will increase as interest rates fall and decrease as interest rates rise. The fair
market value of Quanta s convertible subordinated notes will also increase as the market price of our stock increases
and decrease as the market price falls. The interest and market value changes affect the fair market value of our
convertible subordinated notes but do not impact their carrying value. The fair values of Quanta s convertible
subordinated notes based upon market prices on or before the dates specified were as follows (in millions):

December 31, 2007 September 30, 2008
Principal Principal
Outstanding Fair Value Outstanding Fair Value
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4.5% Notes $ 2700 $ 640.2 $  268.8 $ 680.7
3.75% Notes 143.8 185.4 143.8 187.1
Total $ 4138 $ 825.6 $ 4126 $ 867.8

As a result of certain repurchases, redemptions and conversions, which are described in further detail above, none of
the 4.5% Notes remained outstanding as of October 8, 2008.
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8. STOCKHOLDERS EQUITY:
Treasury Stock

Pursuant to the stock incentive plans described in Note 5, employees may elect to satisfy their tax withholding
obligations upon vesting of restricted stock by having Quanta make such tax payments and withhold a number of
vested shares having a value on the date of vesting equal to their tax withholding obligation. As a result of such
employee elections, during the nine months ended September 30, 2008, Quanta withheld 187,466 shares of Quanta
common stock with a total market value of $4.5 million for settlement of employee tax liabilities. These shares were
accounted for as treasury stock. Under Delaware corporate law, treasury stock is not entitled to vote or be counted for
quorum purposes.

Comprehensive Income
Quanta s foreign operations are translated into U.S. dollars, and a translation adjustment is recorded in other

comprehensive income as a result. The following table presents the components of comprehensive income for the
periods presented (in thousands):

Three Months Ended Nine Months Ended
September 30, September 30,
2007 2008 2007 2008
Net income $ 49,321 $ 54,858 $ 102,390 $ 119,628
Foreign currency translation adjustment 1,697 (1,228) 1,697 (2,245)
Comprehensive income $ 51,018 $ 53,630 $ 104,087 $ 117,383

9. SEGMENT INFORMATION:

Prior to January 1, 2008, Quanta aggregated each of its individual operating units into one reportable segment as a
specialty contractor. Beginning January 1, 2008, Quanta began reporting its results under two business segments,
which are the Infrastructure Services and Dark Fiber segments described above in Note 1. The Infrastructure Services
segment provides comprehensive network solutions to the electric power, gas, telecommunications and cable
television industries, including designing, installing, repairing and maintaining network infrastructure. In addition, the
Infrastructure Services segment provides ancillary services such as inside electrical wiring, intelligent traffic
networks, cable and control systems for light rail lines, airports and highways, and specialty rock trenching,
directional boring and road milling for industrial and commercial customers. The Dark Fiber segment designs,
procures, constructs and maintains fiber-optic telecommunications infrastructure in select markets and licenses the
right to use point-to-point fiber-optic telecommunications facilities to its customers. The Dark Fiber segment services
large industrial and financial services customers, school districts and other entities with high bandwidth
telecommunication needs. The telecommunication services provided through this business are subject to regulation by
the Federal Communications Commission and certain state public utility commissions. The Dark Fiber segment was
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acquired August 30, 2007 as part of the Merger. Accordingly, Quanta s results of operations for the three and nine
months ended September 30, 2007 only include one month of results from the dark fiber business, and segment
reporting is only provided for the three and nine month periods ended September 30, 2008.

Corporate costs not readily identifiable to a reportable segment are allocated based upon each segment s revenue
contribution to consolidated revenues. The assets as of September 30, 2008 and the revenues, operating
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income and capital expenditures for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2008 by segment are as follows
(in thousands):

Infrastructure Total
Services Dark Fiber Reportable
As of September 30, 2008: Segment Segment Segments
Assets $ 2,587,508 $ 598,928 $ 3,186,436

As of September 30, 2008, goodwill included in the asset segment balances was $1,022,883 for the Infrastructure
Services segment and $336,791 for the Dark Fiber segment. The following is a reconciliation of reportable segment
assets to Quanta s consolidated assets as of September 30, 2008.

Assets:
Total assets for reportable segments $ 3,186,436
Unallocated amounts:
Cash at corporate 286,863
Other unallocated amounts, net 89,270
Consolidated total assets $ 3,562,569
Infrastructure Total
Dark

Services Fiber Reportable
For the Three Months Ended September 30, 2008: Segment Segment Segments
Revenues (unaffiliated) $ 1,036,526 $ 16,829 $ 1,053,355
Operating income from external customers $ 88,804 $ 7,638 $ 96,442
Capital expenditures $ 18,486 $ 33,841 $ 52,327

The following is a reconciliation of reportable segment capital expenditures to Quanta s consolidated capital
expenditures for the three months ended September 30, 2008 (in thousands):

Capital expenditures:

Total capital expenditures for reportable segments $ 52,327
Elimination of intersegment profits (1,470)
Corporate capital expenditures 919
Consolidated total capital expenditures $ 51,776
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Infrastructure Total
Dark
Services Fiber Reportable
For the Nine Months Ended September 30, 2008: Segment Segment Segments
Revenues (unaffiliated) $ 2,815,178 $ 43,501 $ 2,858,679
Operating income from external customers $ 193,619 $ 17,916 $ 211,535
Capital expenditures $ 77,609 $ 87,690 $ 165,299

The following is a reconciliation of reportable segment capital expenditures to Quanta s consolidated capital
expenditures for the nine months ended September 30, 2008 (in thousands):

Capital expenditures:

Total capital expenditures for reportable segments $ 165,299

Elimination of intersegment profits (4,910)

Corporate capital expenditures 4,536

Consolidated total capital expenditures $ 164,925
26
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The following table presents information regarding revenues derived from the various industries served by Quanta
aggregated by type of work. The amounts related to the three and nine months ended September 30, 2007 have been
changed to identify revenues from electric power services separately from gas services revenues and to segregate
revenues from the Dark Fiber segment. Revenues by type of work are as follows (in thousands):

Three Months Ended Nine Months Ended
September 30, September 30,

2007 2008 2007 2008
Infrastructure Services:
Electric power services $ 364,636 $ 597,931 $ 1,016,506 $ 1,618,120
Gas services 85,501 239,743 229,307 578,231
Telecommunications and cable television network
services 122,825 126,706 283,005 427,568
Ancillary services 78,392 72,146 243,715 191,259
Total Infrastructure Services 651,354 1,036,526 1,772,533 2,815,178
Dark Fiber 4,511 16,829 4,511 43,501
Total Revenues $ 655,865 $ 1,053,355 $ 1,777,044 $ 2,858,679

Foreign Operations

Quanta does not have significant operations or long-lived assets in countries outside of the United States. Quanta
derived $20.2 million and $49.3 million of its revenues from foreign operations during the three and nine months
ended September 30, 2007 and $27.2 million and $78.7 million of its revenues from foreign operations during the
three and nine months ended September 30, 2008. The majority of revenues from foreign operations was earned in
Canada during the three and nine months ended September 30, 2007 and 2008.

10. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES:

Leases

Quanta leases certain land, buildings and equipment under non-cancelable lease agreements, including related party
leases. The terms of these agreements vary from lease to lease, including some with renewal options and escalation

clauses. The following schedule shows the future minimum lease payments under these leases as of September 30,
2008 (in thousands):

Operating
Leases
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Year Ending December 31
Remainder of 2008

2009

2010

2011

2012

Thereafter

Total minimum lease payments

$ 17,607
51,145
36,816
29,412
18,882
26,983

$ 180,845

Rent expense related to operating leases was approximately $19.8 million and $53.5 million for the three and nine
months ended September 30, 2007 and approximately $26.6 million and $79.3 million for the three and nine months

ended September 30, 2008.
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Quanta has guaranteed the residual value on certain of its equipment operating leases. Quanta guarantees the
difference between this residual value and the fair market value of the underlying asset at the date of termination of
the leases. At September 30, 2008, the maximum guaranteed residual value was approximately $163.6 million.
Although Quanta believes that no significant payments will be made as a result of the difference between the fair
market value of the leased equipment and the guaranteed residual value, the recent volatility in the financial markets
as well as other changes in business and economic factors may create fluctuations in the fair market value of the
underlying assets. Therefore, there can be no assurance that significant payments will not be required in the future.

Committed Capital Expenditures

Quanta has committed various amounts of capital for expansion of its dark fiber network. Quanta does not commit
capital to new network expansions until it has a committed licensing arrangement in place with at least one customer.
The amounts of committed capital expenditures are estimates of costs required to build the networks under contract.
The actual capital expenditures related to building the networks could vary materially from these estimates. As of
September 30, 2008, Quanta estimates these expenditures to be approximately $12.2 million for the period October 1,
2008 through December 31, 2008 and $59.7 million and $0.1 million for the years ended December 31, 2009 and
2010.

Litigation

InfraSource, certain of its officers and directors and various other parties, including David R. Helwig, the former chief
executive officer of InfraSource and a former director of Quanta, were defendants in a lawsuit seeking unspecified
damages filed in the State District Court in Harris County, Texas on September 21, 2005. The plaintiffs alleged that
the defendants violated their fiduciary duties and committed constructive fraud by failing to maximize shareholder
value in connection with certain acquisitions by InfraSource Incorporated that closed in 1999 and 2000 and the
acquisition of InfraSource Incorporated by InfraSource in 2003 and committed other acts of misconduct following the
filing of the petition. The parties to this litigation settled the material claims in January 2008, and the lawsuit was
dismissed by the court on March 4, 2008. The amount of the settlement was reserved in 2007, and therefore the
payment of the settlement amount had no impact on Quanta s results of operations for the first nine months of 2008.

Quanta is also from time to time party to various lawsuits, claims and other legal proceedings that arise in the ordinary
course of business. These actions typically seek, among other things, compensation for alleged personal injury, breach
of contract and/or property damages, punitive damages, civil penalties or other losses, or injunctive or declaratory
relief. With respect to all such lawsuits, claims and proceedings, Quanta records reserves when it is probable that a
liability has been incurred and the amount of loss can be reasonably estimated. Quanta does not believe that any of
these proceedings, separately or in the aggregate, would be expected to have a material adverse effect on Quanta s
consolidated financial position, results of operations or cash flows.

Concentration of Credit Risk
Quanta is subject to concentrations of credit risk related primarily to its cash and cash equivalents and accounts
receivable. Quanta maintains substantially all of its cash investments with what it believes to be high credit quality

financial institutions. In accordance with Quanta s investment policies, these institutions are authorized to invest this
cash in a diversified portfolio of what Quanta believes to be high-quality overnight money market funds and
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commercial paper with short-term maturities. Although Quanta does not currently believe the principal amount of
these investments is subject to any material risk of loss, the recent volatility in the financial markets is likely to
significantly impact the interest income Quanta receives from these investments. In addition, Quanta grants credit
under normal payment terms, generally without collateral, to its customers, which include electric power and gas
companies, telecommunications and cable television system operators, governmental entities, general contractors, and
builders, owners and managers of commercial and industrial properties located primarily in the United States.
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Consequently, Quanta is subject to potential credit risk related to changes in business and economic factors throughout
the United States, which may be heightened as a result of the current financial crisis and volatility of the markets.
However, Quanta generally has certain statutory lien rights with respect to services provided. Under certain
circumstances, such as foreclosures or negotiated settlements, Quanta may take title to the underlying assets in lieu of
cash in settlement of receivables. Historically, some of Quanta s customers have experienced significant financial
difficulties, and others may experience financial difficulties in the future. These difficulties expose Quanta to
increased risk related to collectibility of receivables for services Quanta has performed. No customer accounted for
more than 10% of accounts receivable as of December 31, 2007 or September 30, 2008 or revenues for the three and
nine months ended September 30, 2007 or 2008.

Self-Insurance

Quanta is insured for employer s liability claims, subject to a deductible of $1.0 million per occurrence, and for general
liability and auto liability subject to a deductible of $3.0 million per occurrence. Quanta is also insured for workers
compensation claims, subject to a deductible of $2.0 million per occurrence. Additionally, Quanta is subject to an
annual cumulative aggregate liability of up to $1.0 million on workers compensation claims in excess of $2.0 million
per occurrence. Quanta also has an employee health care benefits plan for employees not subject to collective
bargaining agreements, which is subject to a deductible of $350,000 per claimant per year.

Losses under all of these insurance programs are accrued based upon Quanta s estimates of the ultimate liability for
claims reported and an estimate of claims incurred but not reported, with assistance from third-party actuaries. These
insurance liabilities are difficult to assess and estimate due to unknown factors, including the severity of an injury, the
determination of Quanta s liability in proportion to other parties, the number of incidents not reported and the
effectiveness of our safety program. The accruals are based upon known facts and historical trends and management
believes such accruals to be adequate. As of December 31, 2007 and September 30, 2008, the gross amount accrued
for insurance claims totaled $152.0 million and $148.9 million, with $110.1 million and $107.4 million considered to
be long-term and included in other non-current liabilities. Related insurance recoveries/receivables as of December 31,
2007 and September 30, 2008 were $22.1 million and $15.4 million, of which $11.9 million and $4.7 million are
included in prepaid expenses and other current assets and $10.2 million and $10.7 million are included in other assets,
net.

Effective September 29, 2008, Quanta consummated a novation transaction that released its distressed casualty
insurance carrier for the policy periods August 1, 2000 to February 28, 2003 from all further obligations in connection
with the policies in effect during that period in exchange for the payment to Quanta of an agreed amount. Quanta s
current casualty insurance carrier assumed all obligations under the policies in effect during that period; however,
Quanta is obligated to indemnify the carrier in full for any liabilities under the policies assumed. At September 30,
2008, Quanta estimated that the total future claim amounts associated with the novated polices was $6.6 million. The
estimate of the potential range of these future claim amounts is between $2.0 million and $8.0 million, but the actual
amounts ultimately paid by Quanta in connection with these claims, if any, could vary materially from the above
range and could be impacted by further claims development. During the second quarter of 2008, Quanta recorded an
allowance of $3.4 million for potentially uncollectible amounts estimated to be ultimately due from the distressed
insurer. As a result of the novation transaction, the net receivable balance remaining was written off in the third
quarter of 2008, with an immaterial impact to the three and nine month periods ended September 30, 2008.
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Letters of Credit

Certain of Quanta s vendors require letters of credit to ensure reimbursement for amounts they are disbursing on its
behalf, such as to beneficiaries under its self-funded insurance programs. In addition, from time to time some
customers require Quanta to post letters of credit to ensure payment to its subcontractors and vendors under those
contracts and to guarantee performance under its contracts. Such letters of credit are generally issued by a bank or
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similar financial institution. The letter of credit commits the issuer to pay specified amounts to the holder of the letter
of credit if the holder demonstrates that Quanta has failed to perform specified actions. If this were to occur, Quanta
would be required to reimburse the issuer of the letter of credit. Depending on the circumstances of such a
reimbursement, Quanta may also have to record a charge to earnings for the reimbursement. Quanta does not believe
that it is likely that any material claims will be made under a letter of credit in the foreseeable future.

As of September 30, 2008, Quanta had $197.0 million in letters of credit outstanding under its credit facility primarily
to secure obligations under its casualty insurance program. These are irrevocable stand-by letters of credit with
maturities generally expiring at various times throughout 2008 and 2009. Upon maturity, it is expected that the
majority of these letters of credit will be renewed for subsequent one-year periods.

Performance Bonds and Parent Guarantees

In certain circumstances, Quanta is required to provide performance bonds in connection with its contractual
commitments. Quanta has indemnified its sureties for any expenses paid out under these performance bonds. As of
September 30, 2008, the total amount of outstanding performance bonds was approximately $979.6 million, and the
estimated cost to complete these bonded projects was approximately $225.3 million.

Quanta, from time to time, guarantees the obligations of its wholly owned subsidiaries, including obligations under
certain contracts with customers, certain lease obligations and, in some states, obligations in connection with
obtaining contractors licenses.

Employment Agreements

Quanta has various employment agreements with certain executives and other employees, which provide for
compensation and certain other benefits and for severance payments under certain circumstances. Certain employment
agreements also contain clauses that become effective upon a change of control of Quanta. In addition, employment
agreements between InfraSource and certain of its executives and employees included provisions that became
effective upon termination of employment within a specified time period following the change of control of
InfraSource. Upon the occurrence of any of the defined events in the various employment agreements, Quanta will
pay certain amounts to the employee, which vary with the level of the employee s responsibility.

Collective Bargaining Agreements

Certain of Quanta s subsidiaries are party to various collective bargaining agreements with certain of their employees.
The agreements require such subsidiaries to pay specified wages and provide certain benefits to their union
employees. These agreements expire at various times and have typically been renegotiated and renewed on terms
similar to the ones contained in the expiring agreements.

Indemnities

Quanta has indemnified various parties against specified liabilities that those parties might incur in the future in

connection with Quanta s previous acquisitions of certain companies. The indemnities under acquisition agreements
usually are contingent upon the other party incurring liabilities that reach specified thresholds. Quanta also generally
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indemnifies its customers for the services it provides under its contracts, as well as other specified liabilities, which
may subject Quanta to indemnity claims and liabilities and related litigation. As of September 30, 2008, Quanta is not
aware of circumstances that would lead to future indemnity claims against it for material amounts in connection with
these indemnity obligations.
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Item 2. Management s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations.

The following discussion and analysis of our financial condition and results of operations should be read in
conjunction with our condensed consolidated financial statements and related notes included elsewhere in this
Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q and with our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2007,
which was filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) on February 29, 2008 and is available on the
SEC s website at www.sec.gov and on our website, which is www.quantaservices.com. The discussion below contains
forward-looking statements that are based upon our current expectations and are subject to uncertainty and changes in
circumstances. Actual results may differ materially from expectations due to inaccurate assumptions and known or
unknown risks and uncertainties, including those identified under the headings Uncertainty of Forward-Looking
Statements and Information below in this Item 2 and Risk Factors in Item 1A of Part II of this Quarterly Report.

Introduction

We are a leading national provider of specialty contracting services. Beginning January 1, 2008, we began reporting
our results under two business segments. The infrastructure services (Infrastructure Services) segment provides
specialized contracting services, offering end-to-end network solutions to the electric power, gas, telecommunications
and cable television industries. Specifically, the comprehensive services provided by the Infrastructure Services
segment include designing, installing, repairing and maintaining network infrastructure, as well as certain ancillary
services. Additionally, the dark fiber (Dark Fiber) segment designs, procures, constructs and maintains fiber-optic
telecommunication infrastructures and licenses the right to use point-to-point fiber-optic telecommunications facilities
to our customers. The Dark Fiber segment services large industrial and financial services customers, school districts
and other entities with high bandwidth telecommunication needs. The telecommunication services provided through
this business are subject to regulation by the Federal Communications Commission and certain state public utility
commissions.

On August 30, 2007, we acquired, through a merger transaction (the Merger), all of the outstanding common stock of
InfraSource Services, Inc. (InfraSource). Similar to us, InfraSource provided design, procurement, construction,
testing and maintenance services to electric power utilities, natural gas utilities, telecommunication customers,
government entities and heavy industrial companies, such as petrochemical, processing and refining businesses,
primarily in the United States. As a result of the Merger, we enhanced and expanded our position as a leading
specialized contracting services company serving the electric power, gas, telecommunications and cable television
industries and added the Dark Fiber segment.

We had consolidated revenues for the nine months ended September 30, 2008 of approximately $2.86 billion, of
which 57% was attributable to electric power work, 20% to gas work, 15% to telecommunications and cable television
work and 7% to ancillary services, such as inside electrical wiring, intelligent traffic networks, fueling systems, cable
and control systems for light rail lines, airports and highways and specialty rock trenching, directional boring and road
milling for industrial and commercial customers. In addition, 1% of our consolidated revenues for the nine months
ended September 30, 2008 was generated by our Dark Fiber segment.

Our customers include many of the leading companies in the industries we serve. We have developed strong strategic
alliances with numerous customers and strive to develop and maintain our status as a preferred vendor to our
customers. In our Infrastructure Services segment, we enter into various types of contracts, including competitive unit
price, hourly rate, cost-plus (or time and materials basis), and fixed price (or lump sum basis), the final terms and
prices of which we frequently negotiate with the customer. Although the terms of our contracts vary considerably,
most are made on either a unit price or fixed price basis in which we agree to do the work for a price per unit of work
performed (unit price) or for a fixed amount for the entire project (fixed price). We complete a substantial majority of
our fixed price projects within one year, while we frequently provide maintenance and repair work under open-ended
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unit price or cost-plus master service agreements that are renewable annually.

We recognize that we and our customers are operating in a challenging business environment with the economic
downturn and volatile capital markets. We have currently not been significantly impacted by these conditions, and we
believe that our customers, many of whom are regulated utilities, remain financially stable and able to continue with
their business plans without substantial constraints. We are, however, closely monitoring our customers and the effect
that changes in economic and market conditions may have on them.
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For our Infrastructure Services segment, we recognize revenue on our unit price and cost-plus contracts when units are
completed or services are performed. For our fixed price contracts, we record revenues as work on the contract
progresses on a percentage-of-completion basis. Under this valuation method, revenue is recognized based on the
percentage of total costs incurred to date in proportion to total estimated costs to complete the contract. Fixed price
contracts generally include retainage provisions under which a percentage of the contract price is withheld until the
project is complete and has been accepted by our customer.

The Dark Fiber segment constructs and licenses the right to use fiber-optic telecommunications facilities to our
customers pursuant to licensing agreements, typically with terms from five to twenty-five years, inclusive of certain
renewal options. Under those agreements, customers are provided the right to use a portion of the capacity of a
fiber-optic facility, with the facility owned and maintained by us. Revenues earned pursuant to these fiber-optic
facility licensing agreements, including any initial fees or advanced billings, are recognized ratably over the expected
length of the agreements, including probable renewal periods.

Seasonality; Fluctuations of Results

Our revenues and results of operations can be subject to seasonal and other variations. These variations are influenced
by weather, customer spending patterns, bidding seasons, project schedules and timing and holidays. Typically, our
revenues are lowest in the first quarter of the year because cold, snowy or wet conditions cause delays. The second
quarter is typically better than the first, as some projects begin, but continued cold and wet weather can often impact
second quarter productivity. The third quarter is typically the best of the year, as a greater number of projects are
underway and weather is more accommodating to work on projects. Revenues during the fourth quarter of the year are
typically lower than the third quarter but higher than the second quarter. Many projects are completed in the fourth
quarter and revenues often are impacted positively by customers seeking to spend their capital budget before the end
of the year; however, the holiday season and inclement weather sometimes can cause delays and thereby reduce
revenues and increase costs.

Additionally, our industry can be highly cyclical. As a result, our volume of business may be adversely affected by
declines or delays in new projects in various geographic regions in the United States. Project schedules, in particular

in connection with larger, longer-term projects, can also create fluctuations in the services provided under projects,
which may adversely affect us in a given quarter. The financial condition of our customers and their access to capital,
variations in the margins of projects performed during any particular quarter, regional and national economic and

market conditions, timing of acquisitions, the timing and magnitude of acquisition assimilation costs and interest rate
fluctuations may also materially affect quarterly results. Accordingly, our operating results in any particular quarter or
year may not be indicative of the results that can be expected for any other quarter or for any other year. An investor
should read Understanding Gross Margins and Outlook for additional discussion of trends and challenges that may
affect our financial condition and results of operations.

Understanding Gross Margins

Our gross margin is gross profit expressed as a percentage of revenues. Cost of services, which is subtracted from
revenues to obtain gross profit, consists primarily of salaries, wages and benefits to employees, depreciation, fuel and
other equipment expenses, equipment rentals, subcontracted services, insurance, facilities expenses, materials and
parts and supplies. Various factors some controllable, some not impact our gross margins on a quarterly or annual
basis.

Seasonal and Geographical. As discussed above, seasonal patterns can have a significant impact on gross margins.

Generally, business is slower in the winter months versus the warmer months of the year. This can be offset somewhat
by increased demand for electrical service and repair work resulting from severe weather. In addition, the mix of
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business conducted in different parts of the country will affect margins, as some parts of the country offer the
opportunity for higher gross margins than others.

Weather. Adverse or favorable weather conditions can impact gross margins in a given period. For example, it is
typical in the first quarter of any fiscal year that parts of the country may experience snow or rainfall that may
negatively impact our revenues and gross margin due to reduced productivity. In many cases, projects may be delayed
or temporarily placed on hold. Conversely, in periods when weather remains dry and temperatures are
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accommodating, more work can be done, sometimes with less cost, which would have a favorable impact on gross
margins. In some cases, severe weather, such as hurricanes and ice storms, can provide us with higher margin
emergency service restoration work, which generally has a positive impact on margins.

Revenue Mix. The mix of revenues derived from the industries we serve will impact gross margins, as certain
industries provide higher margin opportunities. Additionally, changes in our customers spending patterns in each of
the industries we serve can cause an imbalance in supply and demand and, therefore, affect margins and mix of
revenues by the industry we served.

Service and Maintenance versus Installation. Installation work is often obtained on a fixed price basis, while
maintenance work is often performed under pre-established or negotiated prices or cost-plus pricing arrangements.
Gross margins for installation work will vary from project to project, and can be higher than maintenance work,
because work obtained on a fixed price basis has higher risk than other types of pricing arrangements. We typically
derive approximately 50% of our annual revenues from maintenance work, but a higher portion of installation work in
any given period may affect our gross margins for that period.

Subcontract Work. Work that is subcontracted to other service providers generally yields lower gross margins. An
increase in subcontract work in a given period may contribute to a decrease in gross margin. We typically subcontract
approximately 10% to 15% of our work to other service providers.

Materials versus Labor. Margins may be lower on projects on which we furnish materials as our mark-up on
materials is generally lower than on labor costs. In a given period, a higher percentage of work that has a higher
materials component may decrease overall gross margin.

Depreciation. We include depreciation in cost of services. This is common practice in our industry, but it can make
comparability to other companies difficult. This must be taken into consideration when comparing us to other
companies.

Insurance. Gross margins could be impacted by fluctuations in insurance accruals as additional claims arise and as
circumstances and conditions of existing claims change. We are insured for employer s liability claims, subject to a
deductible of $1.0 million per occurrence, and for general liability and auto liability subject to a deductible of

$3.0 million per occurrence. We are also insured for workers compensation claims, subject to a deductible of

$2.0 million per occurrence. Additionally, we are subject to an annual cumulative aggregate liability of up to

$1.0 million on workers compensation claims in excess of $2.0 million per occurrence. We also have an employee
health care benefits plan for employees not subject to collective bargaining agreements, which is subject to a
deductible of $350,000 per claimant per year.

Dark Fiber Segment. Our Dark Fiber segment typically generates higher margins than our Infrastructure Services
segment. As we construct fiber-optic telecommunications infrastructure in new markets, expand in existing markets
and renew licenses with existing customers, certain factors may influence the margins obtained from the revenues
from our Dark Fiber segment. Some of these factors include the impact of competition by current large, national
competitors or new market entrants, breadth of service offerings, pricing, geographic presence, the ability of
customers to obtain financing for new projects, changes in the economic and regulatory environments in which our
Dark Fiber segment operates, including changes in the federal E-rate subsidy program for telecommunication and
internet services for schools, libraries and certain health-care facilities, the magnitude and costs of current and future
projects, and our ability to continue to fund significant capital expenditures related to the expansion of the fiber-optic
telecommunications infrastructure.

Selling, General and Administrative Expenses
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Selling, general and administrative expenses consist primarily of compensation and related benefits to management,
administrative salaries and benefits, marketing, office rent and utilities, communications, professional fees, bad debt
expense, letter of credit fees and gains and losses on the sale of property and equipment.
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Results of Operations

In accordance with SFAS No. 144, Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets, the results of
operations data below does not reflect the operations of Environmental Professional Associates, Limited (EPA) in any
periods as EPA s results of operations are reported as a discontinued operation in our accompanying condensed
consolidated statements of operations. Accordingly, the 2007 amounts below do not agree to the amounts previously
reported. Additionally, the results of operations for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2007 only include
one month of results of operations from InfraSource as the Merger did not occur until August 30, 2007.

The following table sets forth selected statements of operations data and such data as a percentage of revenues for the
three and nine month periods indicated (dollars in thousands):

Three Months Ended September 30, Nine Months Ended September 30,
2007 2008 2007 2008

Revenues $ 655,865 100.0% $ 1,053,355 100.0% $ 1,777,044 100.0% $ 2,858,679 100.0%
Cost of services
(including
depreciation) 540,812 82.5 867,789 82.4 1,499,172 84.4 2,390,546 83.6
Gross profit 115,053 17.5 185,566 17.6 277,872 15.6 468,133 16.4
Selling, general
and administrative
expenses 59,816 9.1 80,126 7.6 155,793 8.7 227,134 7.9
Amortization of
intangible assets 4,868 0.7 8,998 0.9 6,332 0.4 29,464 1.1
Operating income 50,369 7.7 96,442 9.1 115,747 6.5 211,535 7.4
Interest expense (5,165) (0.8) (5,223) (0.5 (16,261) (0.9 (15,642) 0.5
Interest income 5,389 0.8 2,022 0.2 15,341 0.8 8,105 0.3
Loss on early
extinguishment of
debt (11) ) (11) )
Other income
(expense), net (702) 0.1 (74) (591) 408
Income from
continuing
operations before
income taxes 49,880 7.6 93,165 8.8 114,225 6.4 204,404 7.2
Provision for
income taxes 2,930 0.4 38,307 3.6 14,626 0.8 84,776 3.0
Income from
continuing
operations $ 46,950 72% $ 54,858 52% $ 99,599 56% $ 119,628 4.2%
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Three months ended September 30, 2008 compared to the three months ended September 30, 2007

Revenues. Revenues increased $397.5 million, or 60.6%, to $1.05 billion for the three months ended September 30,
2008. Electric power services increased by approximately $233.3 million, or 64%, gas services increased by
approximately $154.2 million, or 180%, and telecommunications and cable television network services increased by
approximately $3.9 million, or 3%. In addition to the contribution of revenues from the InfraSource operating units
acquired through the Merger, revenues were favorably impacted by an increase of approximately $102 million in
emergency restoration services, from approximately $13 million in the third quarter of 2007 to approximately

$115 million in the third quarter of 2008, due to the impact of hurricanes in the Gulf Coast region of the United States.
Additionally, revenues increased due to an increased number and size of projects as a result of larger capital budgets
for our customers, specifically in connection with electric transmission projects and certain natural gas transmission
projects, as well as improved pricing. Lastly, revenues increased due to the impact of $12.3 million in additional
revenues in the third quarter of 2008 from the Dark Fiber segment acquired as part of
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the Merger. Partially offsetting these increases was a decrease in ancillary services revenues of approximately
$6.2 million, or 8%, primarily due to the timing of projects.

Gross profit. Gross profit increased $70.5 million, or 61.3%, to $185.6 million for the three months ended

September 30, 2008. The increase in gross profit results primarily from the contribution of the InfraSource operating
units acquired through the Merger coupled with the effect of the increased revenues discussed above. As a percentage
of revenues, gross margins were 17.6% and 17.5% for the three months ended September 30, 2008 and 2007,
respectively. The gross margin was positively impacted in the third quarter of 2008 as compared to the third quarter of
2007 by improved pricing, an increase in the amount of emergency restoration services, which typically generate
higher margins, the contribution of the higher margin Dark Fiber segment acquired as part of the Merger and better
fixed costs absorption as a result of higher revenues. These positive factors were partially offset by declines in
margins derived from telecommunications and ancillary revenues due to losses on a telecommunication project and
certain intelligent traffic network projects during the third quarter of 2008.

Selling, general and administrative expenses. Selling, general and administrative expenses increased $20.3 million, or
34.0%, to $80.1 million for the three months ended September 30, 2008. The increase in selling, general and
administrative expenses was primarily a result of the addition of administrative expenses associated with the
InfraSource operating units acquired through the Merger, as well as higher salaries and benefits associated with
increased personnel, salary increases and increased performance bonuses. As a percentage of revenues, selling,
general and administrative expenses decreased from 9.1% to 7.6% primarily due to improved cost absorption as a
result of higher revenues.

Amortization of intangible assets. Amortization of intangible assets increased $4.1 million to $9.0 million for the
three months ended September 30, 2008. This increase is attributable to the amortization of intangible assets
associated with acquisitions completed since the beginning of the third quarter of 2007, primarily the acquisition of
InfraSource.

Interest expense. Interest expense was relatively constant for the three months ended September 30, 2008 as
compared to the three months ended September 30, 2007, primarily due to having substantially the same principal
amount of convertible subordinated notes outstanding during each period.

Interest income. Interest income was $2.0 million for the quarter ended September 30, 2008, compared to

$5.4 million for the quarter ended September 30, 2007. The decrease results primarily from the lower average cash
balance and generally lower interest rates for the quarter ended September 30, 2008 as compared to the quarter ended
September 30, 2007.

Provision for income taxes. The provision for income taxes was $38.3 million for the three months ended
September 30, 2008, with an effective tax rate of 41.1%. During the three months ended September 30, 2007, the
provision for income taxes was $2.9 million, with an effective tax rate of 5.9%. Quanta recorded tax benefits of
$17.9 million for the three months ended September 30, 2007 due to decreases in reserves for uncertain tax benefits
resulting from the expiration of various federal and state tax statutes of limitations.

Nine months ended September 30, 2008 compared to the nine months ended September 30, 2007

Revenues. Revenues increased $1.08 billion, or 60.9%, to $2.86 billion for the nine months ended September 30,
2008. Electric power services increased by approximately $601.6 million, or 59%, gas services increased by
approximately $348.9 million, or 152%, and telecommunications and cable television network services increased by
approximately $144.6 million, or 51%. In addition to the contribution of revenues from the InfraSource operating
units acquired through the Merger, revenues were favorably impacted by an increased number and size of projects as a
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result of larger capital budgets for our customers, specifically in connection with electric transmission projects, certain
natural gas transmission projects and fiber build-out initiatives, as well as improved pricing. Additionally, revenues
increased due to an increase of approximately $83 million in emergency restoration services, from approximately

$77 million in the first nine months of 2007 to approximately $160 million in the same period of 2008, as well as the
impact of $39.0 million in additional revenues in the first nine months of 2008 from the Dark Fiber segment acquired
as part of the Merger. Partially offsetting these increases was a decrease
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of approximately $52.5 million, or 22%, in ancillary services revenues primarily due to the timing of projects, more
selectivity in projects bid as well as resources being utilized for projects in other types of work.

Gross profit. Gross profit increased $190.3 million, or 68.5%, to $468.1 million for the nine months ended
September 30, 2008. The increase in gross profit results primarily from the contribution of the InfraSource operating
units acquired through the Merger coupled with the effect of the increased revenues discussed above. As a percentage
of revenues, gross margin increased from 15.6% for the nine months ended September 30, 2007 to 16.4% for the nine
months ended September 30, 2008. Positively impacting the 2008 gross margin was improved pricing and a higher
amount of emergency restoration services, as discussed above, which typically generate higher margins. In addition,
gross margins were higher in the 2008 period due to the contribution of the higher margin Dark Fiber segment
acquired as part of the Merger and better fixed costs absorption as a result of higher revenues.

Selling, general and administrative expenses. Selling, general and administrative expenses increased $71.3 million, or
45.8%, to $227.1 million for the nine months ended September 30, 2008. The increase in selling, general and
administrative expenses was primarily a result of the addition of administrative expenses associated with the
InfraSource operating units acquired through the Merger, as well as higher salaries and benefits associated with
increased personnel, salary increases and increased performance bonuses. As a percentage of revenues, selling,
general and administrative expenses decreased from 8.7% to 7.9% primarily due to improved cost absorption as a
result of higher revenues.

Amortization of intangible assets. Amortization of intangible assets increased $23.1 million to $29.5 million for the
nine months ended September 30, 2008. This increase is attributable to the amortization of intangible assets associated
with acquisitions completed since the beginning of 2007, primarily the acquisition of InfraSource.

Interest expense. Interest expense for the nine months ended September 30, 2008 decreased $0.6 million as compared
to the nine months ended September 30, 2007, primarily due to the repayment of our 4.0% convertible subordinated
notes on July 2, 2007.

Interest income. Interest income was $8.1 million for the nine months ended September 30, 2008, compared to

$15.3 million for the nine months ended September 30, 2007. The decrease results primarily from the lower average
cash balance and generally lower interest rates for the nine months ended September 30, 2008 as compared to the nine
months ended September 30, 2007.

Provision for income taxes. The provision for income taxes was $84.8 million for the nine months ended

September 30, 2008, with an effective tax rate of 41.5%. During the nine months ended September 30, 2007, the
provision for income taxes was $14.6 million, with an effective tax rate of 12.8%. The lower effective tax rate for
2007 results from $33.2 million of tax benefits recorded in 2007 associated with the reversal of tax contingencies.
Excluding these discrete period benefits, the provision for income taxes was $47.9 million for the nine months ended
September 30, 2007, with an effective tax rate of 41.9%.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

Cash Requirements

We anticipate that our cash and cash equivalents on hand, which totaled $266.4 million as of September 30, 2008,
borrowing capacity under our credit facility, and our future cash flows from operations will provide sufficient funds to
enable us to meet our operating needs, debt service requirements and planned capital expenditures and facilitate our

ability to grow in the foreseeable future. Initiatives to rebuild the United States electric power grid or momentum in
deployment of fiber to the premises may require a significant amount of additional working capital. We also evaluate
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opportunities for strategic acquisitions from time to time that may require cash.

Management assesses our liquidity in terms of our ability to generate cash to fund our operating, investing and
financing activities. As of September 30, 2008, we continued to generate cash from operating activities and remain in
a strong financial position, with resources available for reinvestment in existing businesses, strategic acquisitions and
managing our capital structure. We believe that we have adequate cash and availability under our credit facility to
meet all such needs.
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Although recent distress in the financial markets has not had a significant impact on our financial position, results of
operations or cash flows as of and for the periods ending September 30, 2008, management continues to monitor the
financial markets and general global economic conditions. If further changes in financial markets or other areas of the
economy adversely impact our ability to access capital markets, we would expect to rely on a combination of available
cash and existing committed credit facilities to provide short-term funding. We consider our cash investment policies
to be conservative in that we maintain a diverse portfolio of what we believe to be high-quality cash investments with
short-term maturities. Accordingly, we do not anticipate that the current volatility in the capital markets will have a
material impact on the principal amounts of our cash investments.

Capital expenditures for the remainder of 2008 are expected to be approximately $25 million, of which $12 million of
these expenditures are targeted for the expansion of our dark fiber network in connection with committed customer
arrangements, with the majority of the remaining expenditures for operating equipment in the Infrastructure Services
segment.

At September 30, 2008, we had outstanding approximately $268.8 million aggregate principal amount of 4.5%
convertible subordinated notes due 2023 (4.5% Notes), however, as a result of the transactions described in further

detail in Debt Instruments 4.5% Convertible Subordinated Notes, none of the 4.5% Notes remained outstanding as of
October 8, 2008.

Our 3.75% convertible subordinated notes due 2026 (3.75% Notes) are not presently convertible, although they have
been convertible in certain prior quarters as a result of the satisfaction of the market price condition described in
further detail in Debt Instruments  3.75% Convertible Notes below. The 3.75% Notes could become convertible in
future periods upon the satisfaction of the market price condition or other conditions. If any holder of the convertible
subordinated notes requests to convert their notes, we have the option to deliver cash, shares of our common stock or a
combination thereof, with the amount of cash determined in accordance with the terms of the indenture under which
the notes were issued.

Sources and Uses of Cash

As of September 30, 2008, we had cash and cash equivalents of $266.4 million, working capital of $602.4 million and
long-term debt of $143.8 million, net of current maturities. Subsequent to September 30, 2008, working capital
increased by $268.6 million as a result of the conversion of this principal amount of our 4.5% Notes into our common
stock. We also had $197.0 million of letters of credit outstanding under our credit facility, leaving $278.0 million
available for revolving loans or issuing new letters of credit.

Operating Activities

Cash flow from operations is primarily influenced by demand for our services, operating margins and the type of
services we provide but can also be impacted by working capital needs. Operating activities provided net cash of
$16.8 million during the three months ended September 30, 2008 as compared to $42.8 million in the three months
ended September 30, 2007. Operating activities provided net cash of $50.1 million during the nine months ended
September 30, 2008 as compared to $115.3 million in the nine months ended September 30, 2007. Working capital
needs are generally higher during the summer and fall months due to increased construction in weather affected
regions of the country. Conversely, working capital assets are typically converted to cash during the winter months.
Operating cash flow for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2008 was negatively impacted by higher
working capital requirements as we performed significant emergency restoration work in September 2008 as a result
of hurricanes in the Gulf Coast region and the growth in gas work. Additionally, invoice processing issues
experienced by certain customers as a result of the rapid ramp-up of fiber to the premises/node and wireless
installations over the past year have contributed to the increase in working capital requirements for the three and nine
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months ended September 30, 2008 as compared to the three and nine months ended September 30, 2007. The specific
telecommunications work being performed has voluminous billing requirements and has been subject to lengthy
delays as our invoices are processed through the customer s payment system.
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In the three months ended September 30, 2008, we used net cash in investing activities of $54.5 million as compared
to $12.1 million provided by investing activities in the three months ended September 30, 2007. Investing activities in
three months ended September 30, 2008 include $51.8 million used for capital expenditures, $4.8 million in net cash
outlays for acquisitions, partially offset by $2.1 million of proceeds from the sale of equipment.

During the three months ended September 30, 2007, we had a net cash inflow of $20.6 million from acquisitions due
to the cash on hand at InfraSource when it was acquired on August 30, 2007, partially offset by cash used for
acquisitions and certain acquisition expenses. Also during the three months ended September 30, 2007, we used
$19.0 million for capital expenditures, offset partially by $10.5 million of proceeds from the sale of equipment. The
$32.8 million increase in capital expenditures in the three months ended September 30, 2008 compared to the three
months ended September 30, 2007 is related primarily to the growth in our business and the increased capital
expenditure requirements as a result of the Merger, primarily from our Dark Fiber segment.

In the nine months ended September 30, 2008, we used net cash in investing activities of $196.1 million as compared
to $45.4 million in the nine months ended September 30, 2007. Investing activities in the first nine months of 2008
include $164.9 million used for capital expenditures, $27.7 million in net cash outlays for acquisitions, and

$14.6 million paid to secure patents and developed technology, partially offset by $11.1 million of proceeds from the
sale of equipment. During the nine months ended September 30, 2007, we used $61.0 million for capital expenditures,
offset partially by $14.7 million of proceeds from the sale of equipment. The $103.9 million increase in capital
expenditures in the nine months ended September 30, 2008 compared to the nine months ended September 30, 2007 is
related primarily to the growth in our business and the increased capital expenditure requirements as a result of the
Merger, primarily from our Dark Fiber segment. Investing activities in the nine months ended September 30, 2007
included purchases and sales of variable rate demand notes (VRDNs), which are classified as short-term investments,
available for sale when held. We did not invest in VRDNSs subsequent to the first quarter of 2007.

Financing Activities

In the three months ended September 30, 2008, financing activities provided net cash flow of $0.6 million as
compared to $90.9 million used in financing activities in the three months ended September 30, 2007. The

$0.6 million provided by financing activities in the three months ended September 30, 2008 resulted primarily from
$0.3 million received from the exercise of stock options and a $0.3 million tax benefit from the vesting of restricted
stock awards and the exercise of stock options. The $90.9 million used in financing activities in the three months
ended September 30, 2007 resulted primarily from a $60.5 million repayment of debt associated with the Merger and
a $33.3 million repayment of the 4.0% Notes, partially offset by a $1.6 million tax benefit from stock-based equity
awards and $2.2 million received from the exercise of stock options.

In the nine months ended September 30, 2008, financing activities provided net cash flow of $7.6 million as compared
to $83.8 million used in financing activities in the nine months ended September 30, 2007. The $7.6 million provided
by financing activities in the nine months ended September 30, 2008 resulted primarily from $6.0 million received
from the exercise of stock options. Also contributing to the inflow was a $2.6 million tax benefit from the vesting of
restricted stock awards and the exercise of stock options, partially offset by a $1.0 million net repayment of other
long-term debt. The $83.8 million used in financing activities in the nine months ended September 30, 2007 resulted
primarily from a $60.5 million repayment of debt associated with the Merger and a $33.3 million repayment of the
4.0% Notes, partially offset by a $7.1 million tax benefit from stock-based equity awards and $5.4 million received
from the exercise of stock options.

Debt Instruments
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Credit Facility

We have a credit facility with various lenders that provides for a $475.0 million senior secured revolving credit
facility maturing on September 19, 2012. Subject to the conditions specified in the credit facility and receipt of
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additional commitments from new or existing lenders, we have the option to increase the revolving commitments
under the credit facility by up to an additional $125.0 million from time to time, although under current market
conditions, it is unlikely we would be able to obtain such additional commitments.

Borrowings under the credit facility are to be used for working capital, capital expenditures and other general
corporate purposes. The entire unused portion of the credit facility is available for the issuance of letters of credit.

As of September 30, 2008, we had approximately $197.0 million of letters of credit issued under the credit facility and
no outstanding revolving loans. The remaining $278.0 million was available for revolving loans or issuing new letters
of credit. Amounts borrowed under the credit facility bear interest, at our option, at a rate equal to either (a) the
Eurodollar Rate (as defined in the credit facility) plus 0.875% to 1.75%, as determined by the ratio of our total funded
debt to consolidated EBITDA (as defined in the credit facility), or (b) the base rate (as described below) plus 0.00% to
0.75%, as determined by the ratio of our total funded debt to consolidated EBITDA. Letters of credit issued under the
credit facility are subject to a letter of credit fee of 0.875% to 1.75%, based on the ratio of our total funded debt to
consolidated EBITDA. We are also subject to a commitment fee of 0.15% to 0.35%, based on the ratio of our total
funded debt to consolidated EBITDA, on any unused availability under the credit facility. The base rate equals the
higher of (i) the Federal Funds Rate (as defined in the credit facility) plus 1/2 of 1% or (ii) the bank s prime rate.

The credit facility contains certain covenants, including covenants with respect to maximum funded debt to
consolidated EBITDA, maximum senior debt to consolidated EBITDA and minimum interest coverage, in each case
as specified in the credit facility. For purposes of calculating the maximum funded debt to consolidated EBITDA ratio
and the maximum senior debt to consolidated EBITDA ratio, our maximum funded debt and maximum senior debt are
reduced by all cash and cash equivalents (as defined in the credit facility) held by us in excess of $25.0 million. As of
September 30, 2008, we were in compliance with all of its covenants. The credit facility limits certain acquisitions,
mergers and consolidations, capital expenditures, asset sales and prepayments of indebtedness and, subject to certain
exceptions, prohibits liens on material assets. The credit facility also limits the payment of dividends and stock
repurchase programs in any fiscal year except those payments or other distributions payable solely in capital stock.
The credit facility provides for customary events of default and carries cross-default provisions with all of our existing
subordinated notes, our continuing indemnity and security agreement with our sureties and all of our other debt
instruments exceeding $15.0 million in borrowings. If an event of default (as defined in the credit facility) occurs and
is continuing, on the terms and subject to the conditions set forth in the credit facility, amounts outstanding under the
credit facility may be accelerated and may become or be declared immediately due and payable.

The credit facility is secured by a pledge of all of the capital stock of our U.S. subsidiaries, 65% of the capital stock of
our foreign subsidiaries and substantially all of our assets. Our U.S. subsidiaries guarantee the repayment of all
amounts due under the credit facility. Our obligations under the credit facility constitute designated senior
indebtedness under our 3.75% and 4.5% convertible subordinated notes.

4.0% Convertible Subordinated Notes

During the first half of 2007, we had outstanding $33.3 million aggregate principal amount of 4.0% convertible
subordinated notes (4.0% Notes), which matured on July 1, 2007. The outstanding principal balance of the
4.0% Notes plus accrued interest was repaid on July 2, 2007, the first business day after the maturity date.
4.5% Convertible Subordinated Notes

At September 30, 2008, we had outstanding approximately $268.8 million aggregate principal amount of 4.5%

convertible subordinated notes due 2023 (4.5% Notes). As described below, none of the 4.5% Notes remain
outstanding. The resale of the 4.5% Notes and the shares issuable upon their conversion was registered for the benefit
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of the holders in a shelf registration statement filed with the SEC. The outstanding 4.5% Notes required semi-annual
interest payments on April 1 and October 1 until maturity.

The indenture under which the 4.5% Notes were issued provided the holders of the notes the right to require us to
repurchase in cash, on October 1, 2008, all or some of their notes at the principal amount thereof plus accrued and
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unpaid interest. As a result of this repurchase right, we reclassified approximately $270.0 million outstanding
aggregate principal amount of the 4.5% Notes as a current obligation in October 2007.

The indenture also provided that, beginning October 8, 2008, we had the right to redeem for cash some or all of the
4.5% Notes at the principal amount thereof plus accrued and unpaid interest. On August 27, 2008, we notified the
registered holders of the 4.5% Notes that we would redeem the notes on October 8, 2008. Upon notification of the
redemption and until October 6, 2008, the holders of the 4.5% Notes had the right to convert all or a portion of the
principal amount of their notes to shares of our common stock at a conversion rate of 89.7989 shares of common stock
for each $1,000 principal amount of notes converted, which equates to a conversion price of $11.14 per share.

Following the redemption notice and prior to September 30, 2008, the holders of $1.2 million aggregate principal
amount of the 4.5% Notes elected to convert their notes, resulting in the issuance of 107,846 shares of our common
stock in the third quarter of 2008. After September 30, 2008, the holders of an additional $268.6 million aggregate
principal amount of the 4.5% Notes elected to convert their notes, resulting in the issuance of 24,121,935 shares of our
common stock in the fourth quarter of 2008. We also repurchased $106,000 aggregate principal amount of the

4.5% Notes on October 1, 2008 pursuant to the holders election and redeemed for cash $49,000 aggregate principal
amount of the notes, plus accrued and unpaid interest, on October 8, 2008. As a result of these transactions, none of
the 4.5% Notes remain outstanding.

3.75% Convertible Subordinated Notes

At September 30, 2008, we had outstanding $143.8 million aggregate principal amount of the 3.75% Notes. The resale
of the notes and the shares issuable upon conversion thereof was registered for the benefit of the holders in a shelf
registration statement filed with the SEC. The 3.75% Notes mature on April 30, 2026 and bear interest at the annual
rate of 3.75%, payable semi-annually on April 30 and October 30, until maturity.

The 3.75% Notes are convertible into our common stock, based on an initial conversion rate of 44.6229 shares of our
common stock per $1,000 principal amount of 3.75% Notes (which is equal to an initial conversion price of
approximately $22.41 per share), subject to adjustment as a result of certain events. The 3.75% Notes are convertible
by the holder (i) during any fiscal quarter if the closing price of our common stock is greater than 130% of the
conversion price for at least 20 trading days in the period of 30 consecutive trading days ending on the last trading day
of the immediately preceding fiscal quarter, (ii) upon us calling the 3.75% Notes for redemption, (iii) upon the
occurrence of specified distributions to holders of our common stock or specified corporate transactions or (iv) at any
time on or after March 1, 2026 until the business day immediately preceding the maturity date of the 3.75% Notes.
The 3.75% Notes are not presently convertible, although they have been convertible in certain prior quarters as a result
of the satisfaction of the market price condition in clause (i) above. If the 3.75% Notes become convertible under any
of these circumstances, we have the option to deliver cash, shares of our common stock or a combination thereof, with
the amount of cash determined in accordance with the terms of the indenture under which the notes were issued.
Conversions that may occur in the future could result in the recording of losses on extinguishment of debt if the
conversions are settled in cash for an amount in excess of the principal amount. The holders of the 3.75% Notes who
convert their notes in connection with certain change in control transactions, as defined in the indenture, may be
entitled to a make whole premium in the form of an increase in the conversion rate. In the event of a change in control,
in lieu of paying holders a make whole premium, if applicable, we may elect, in some circumstances, to adjust the
conversion rate and related conversion obligations so that the 3.75% Notes are convertible into shares of the acquiring
or surviving company.

Beginning on April 30, 2010 until April 30, 2013, we may redeem for cash all or part of the 3.75% Notes at a price

equal to 100% of the principal amount plus accrued and unpaid interest, if the closing price of our common stock is
equal to or greater than 130% of the conversion price then in effect for the 3.75% Notes for at least 20 trading days in
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the 30 consecutive trading day period ending on the trading day immediately prior to the date of mailing of the notice
of redemption. In addition, we may redeem for cash all or part of the 3.75% Notes at any time on or after April 30,
2010 at certain redemption prices, plus accrued and unpaid interest. Beginning with the six-month interest period
commencing on April 30, 2010, and for each six-month interest period thereafter, we will be required to pay
contingent interest on any outstanding 3.75% Notes during the applicable interest period if the average trading price of
the 3.75% Notes reaches a specified threshold. The contingent interest payable within any
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applicable interest period will equal an annual rate of 0.25% of the average trading price of the 3.75% Notes during a
five trading day reference period.

The holders of the 3.75% Notes may require us to repurchase all or a part of the notes in cash on each of April 30,
2013, April 30, 2016 and April 30, 2021, and in the event of a change in control of the company, as defined in the
indenture, at a purchase price equal to 100% of the principal amount of the 3.75% Notes plus accrued and unpaid
interest. The 3.75% Notes carry cross-default provisions with our other debt instruments exceeding $20.0 million in
borrowings, which includes our existing credit facility.

Off-Balance Sheet Transactions

As is common in our industry, we have entered into certain off-balance sheet arrangements in the ordinary course of
business that result in risks not directly reflected in our balance sheets. Our significant off-balance sheet transactions
include liabilities associated with non-cancelable operating leases, letter of credit obligations, commitments to expand
our dark fiber network and surety guarantees. We have not engaged in any off-balance sheet financing arrangements
through special purpose entities, and we do not guarantee the work or obligations of third parties.

Leases

We enter into non-cancelable operating leases for many of our facility, vehicle and equipment needs. These leases
allow us to conserve cash by paying a monthly lease rental fee for use of facilities, vehicles and equipment rather than
purchasing them. We may decide to cancel or terminate a lease before the end of its term, in which case we are
typically liable to the lessor for the remaining lease payments under the term of the lease.

We have guaranteed the residual value of the underlying assets under certain of our equipment operating leases at the
date of termination of such leases. We have agreed to pay any difference between this residual value and the fair
market value of each underlying asset as of the lease termination date. As of September 30, 2008, the maximum
guaranteed residual value was approximately $163.6 million. We believe that no significant payments will be made as
a result of the difference between the fair market value of the leased equipment and the guaranteed residual value.
However, there can be no assurance that future significant payments will not be required.

Letters of Credit

Certain of our vendors require letters of credit to ensure reimbursement for amounts they are disbursing on our behalf,
such as to beneficiaries under our self-funded insurance programs. In addition, from time to time some customers
require us to post letters of credit to ensure payment to our subcontractors and vendors under those contracts and to
guarantee performance under our contracts. Such letters of credit are generally issued by a bank or similar financial
institution. The letter of credit commits the issuer to pay specified amounts to the holder of the letter of credit if the
holder demonstrates that we have failed to perform specified actions. If this were to occur, we would be required to
reimburse the issuer of the letter of credit. Depending on the circumstances of such a reimbursement, we may also
have to record a charge to earnings for the reimbursement. We do not believe that it is likely that any material claims
will be made under a letter of credit in the foreseeable future.

As of September 30, 2008, we had $197.0 million in letters of credit outstanding under our credit facility primarily to
secure obligations under our casualty insurance program. These are irrevocable stand-by letters of credit with
maturities generally expiring at various times throughout 2008 and 2009. Upon maturity, it is expected that the

majority of these letters of credit will be renewed for subsequent one-year periods.

Performance Bonds and Parent Guarantees

Table of Contents 81



Edgar Filing: QUANTA SERVICES INC - Form 10-Q

Many customers, particularly in connection with new construction, require us to post performance and payment bonds
issued by a financial institution known as a surety. These bonds provide a guarantee to the customer that we will
perform under the terms of a contract and that we will pay subcontractors and vendors. If we fail to perform under a
contract or to pay subcontractors and vendors, the customer may demand that the surety make payments or provide
services under the bond. We must reimburse the surety for any expenses or outlays it incurs.
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Under our continuing indemnity and security agreement with our sureties and with the consent of our lenders under
our credit facility, we have granted security interests in certain of our assets to collateralize our obligations to the
sureties. In addition, under our agreement with the surety that issued bonds on behalf of InfraSource, which remains in
place for bonds outstanding under it at the closing of the Merger, we will be required to transfer to the surety certain
of our assets as collateral in the event of a default under the agreement. We may be required to post letters of credit or
other collateral in favor of the sureties or our customers in the future. Posting letters of credit in favor of the sureties or
our customers would reduce the borrowing availability under our credit facility. To date, we have not been required to
make any reimbursements to our sureties for bond-related costs. We believe that it is unlikely that we will have to
fund significant claims under our surety arrangements in the foreseeable future. As of September 30, 2008, an
aggregate of approximately $979.6 million in original face amount of bonds issued by our sureties were outstanding.
Our estimated cost to complete these bonded projects was approximately $225.3 million as of September 30, 2008.

From time to time, we guarantee the obligations of our wholly owned subsidiaries, including obligations under certain
contracts with customers, certain lease obligations and, in some states, obligations in connection with obtaining
contractors licenses.

Contractual Obligations

As of September 30, 2008, our future contractual obligations are as follows (in thousands):

Remainder

Total of 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 Thereafter
Long-term debt
principal $ 412,597 $ 268,847 $ $ $ $ $ 143,750
Long-term debt
interest 24,483 1,347 5,391 5,391 5,391 5,391 1,572
Operating lease
obligations 180,845 17,607 51,145 36,816 29,412 18,882 26,983
Committed capital
expenditures for
dark fiber networks
under contracts
with customers 71,938 12,220 59,692 26
Total $ 689,863 $ 300,021 $ 116,228 $ 42233 § 34803 $ 24273 § 172,305

Approximately $268.8 million of principal related to the 4.5% Notes is included in the above table in the Remainder
of 2008 column as Long-term Debt principal . However, as a result of conversions, redemptions and repurchases
following September 30, 2008, none of the 4.5% Notes remain outstanding.

The committed capital expenditures for dark fiber networks represent commitments related to signed contracts with
customers. The amounts are estimates of costs required to build the networks under contract. The actual capital

expenditures related to building the networks could vary materially from these estimates.

Actual maturities of our long-term debt may differ from contractual maturities because convertible note holders may
convert their notes prior to the maturity dates or subsequent to optional maturity dates.
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We believe that it is reasonably possible that within the next 12 months unrecognized tax benefits will decrease
$16.5 million to $18.3 million due to the expiration of certain statutes of limitations. We are unable to make
reasonably reliable estimates regarding the timing of future cash outflows, if any, associated with the remaining
unrecognized tax benefits.

Our multi-employer pension plan contributions are determined annually based on our union employee payrolls, which
cannot be determined in advance for future periods. As of September 30, 2008, the total unrecognized tax benefit
related to uncertain tax positions was $56.7 million, of which no significant amounts are anticipated to be paid within
the next twelve months.

Self-Insurance
We are insured for employer s liability claims, subject to a deductible of $1.0 million per occurrence, and for general
liability and auto liability subject to a deductible of $3.0 million per occurrence. We are also insured for workers

compensation claims, subject to a deductible of $2.0 million per occurrence. Additionally, we are subject
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to an annual cumulative aggregate liability of up to $1.0 million on workers compensation claims in excess of
$2.0 million per occurrence. We also have an employee health care benefits plan for employees not subject to
collective bargaining agreements, which is subject to a deductible of $350,000 per claimant per year.

Losses under all of these insurance programs are accrued based upon our estimates of the ultimate liability for claims
reported and an estimate of claims incurred but not reported, with assistance from third-party actuaries. These
insurance liabilities are difficult to assess and estimate due to unknown factors, including the severity of an injury, the
determination of our liability in proportion to other parties, the number of incidents not reported and the effectiveness
of our safety program. The accruals are based upon known facts and historical trends and management believes such
accruals to be adequate. As of December 31, 2007 and September 30, 2008, the gross amount accrued for insurance
claims totaled $152.0 million and $148.9 million, with $110.1 million and $107.4 million considered to be long-term
and included in other non-current liabilities. Related insurance recoveries/receivables as of December 31, 2007 and
September 30, 2008 were $22.1 million and $15.4 million, of which $11.9 million and $4.7 million are included in
prepaid expenses and other current assets and $10.2 million and $10.7 million are included in other assets, net.

Effective September 29, 2008, Quanta consummated a novation transaction that released its distressed casualty
insurance carrier for the policy periods August 1, 2000 to February 28, 2003 from all further obligations in connection
with the policies in effect during that period in exchange for the payment to us of an agreed amount. Our current
casualty insurance carrier assumed all obligations under the policies in effect during that period; however, we are
obligated to indemnify the carrier in full for any liabilities under the policies assumed. At September 30, 2008, we
estimated that the total future claim amounts associated with the novated polices was $6.6 million. The estimate of the
potential range of these future claim amounts is between $2.0 million and $8.0 million, but the actual amounts
ultimately paid by us in connection with these claims, if any, could vary materially from the above range and could be
impacted by further claims development. During the second quarter of 2008, we recorded an allowance of

$3.4 million for potentially uncollectible amounts estimated to be ultimately due from the distressed insurer. As a
result of the novation transaction, the net receivable balance remaining was written off in the third quarter of 2008,
with an immaterial impact to the three and nine month periods ended September 30, 2008.

Concentration of Credit Risk

We are subject to concentrations of credit risk related primarily to our cash and cash equivalents and accounts
receivable. We maintain substantially all of our cash investments with what we believe to be high credit quality
financial institutions. In accordance with our investment policies, these institutions are authorized to invest this cash in
a diversified portfolio of what we believe to be high-quality overnight money market funds and commercial paper
with short-term maturities. Although we do not currently believe the principal amount of these investments is subject
to any material risk of loss, the recent volatility in the financial markets is likely to significantly impact the interest
income we receive from these investments. In addition, we grant credit under normal payment terms, generally
without collateral, to our customers, which include electric power and gas companies, telecommunications and cable
television system operators, governmental entities, general contractors, and builders, owners and managers of
commercial and industrial properties located primarily in the United States. Consequently, we are subject to potential
credit risk related to changes in business and economic factors throughout the United States, which may be heightened
as a result of the current financial crisis and volatility of the markets. However, we generally have certain statutory
lien rights with respect to services provided. Under certain circumstances, such as foreclosures or negotiated
settlements, we may take title to the underlying assets in lieu of cash in settlement of receivables. Historically, some
of our customers have experienced significant financial difficulties, and others may experience financial difficulties in
the future. These difficulties expose us to increased risk related to collectibility of receivables for services we have
performed. No customer accounted for more than 10% of accounts receivable as of December 31, 2007 or

September 30, 2008 or revenues for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2007 or 2008.
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InfraSource, certain of its officers and directors and various other parties, including David R. Helwig, the former chief
executive officer of InfraSource and a former director of Quanta, were defendants in a lawsuit seeking
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unspecified damages filed in the State District Court in Harris County, Texas on September 21, 2005. The plaintiffs
alleged that the defendants violated their fiduciary duties and committed constructive fraud by failing to maximize
shareholder value in connection with certain acquisitions by InfraSource Incorporated that closed in 1999 and

2000 and the acquisition of InfraSource Incorporated by InfraSource in 2003 and committed other acts of misconduct
following the filing of the petition. The parties to this litigation settled the material claims in January 2008 and the
lawsuit was dismissed by the court on March 4, 2008. The amount of the settlement was reserved in 2007, and,
therefore, the payment of the settlement amount had no impact on our results of operations for the first nine months of
2008.

We are from time to time party to various lawsuits, claims and other legal proceedings that arise in the ordinary course
of business. These actions typically seek, among other things, compensation for alleged personal injury, breach of
contract and/or property damages, punitive damages, civil penalties or other losses, or injunctive or declaratory relief.
With respect to all such lawsuits, claims and proceedings, we record reserves when it is probable that a liability has
been incurred and the amount of loss can be reasonably estimated. We do not believe that any of these proceedings,
separately or in the aggregate, would be expected to have a material adverse effect on our consolidated financial
position, results of operations or cash flows.

Related Party Transactions

In the normal course of business, we enter into transactions from time to time with related parties. These transactions
typically take the form of facility leases with prior owners of certain acquired companies and payables to prior owners
who are now employees.

New Accounting Pronouncements

In September 2006, the FASB issued SFAS No. 157, Fair Value Measurements. SFAS No. 157 defines fair value,
establishes methods used to measure fair value and expands disclosure requirements about fair value measurements.
SFAS No. 157 is effective for financial statements issued for fiscal years beginning after November 15, 2007, and
interim periods within those fiscal periods, as it relates to financial assets and liabilities, as well as for any
non-financial assets and liabilities that are carried at fair value. SFAS No. 157 also requires certain tabular disclosure
related to the application of SFAS No. 144, Accounting for Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets and
SFAS No. 142, Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets. On November 14, 2007, the FASB provided a one year deferral
for the implementation of SFAS No. 157 for non-financial assets and liabilities. SFAS No. 157 excludes from its
scope SFAS No. 123(R) and its related interpretive accounting pronouncements that address share-based payment
transactions. We adopted SFAS No. 157 on January 1, 2008 as it applies to our financial assets and liabilities, and
based on the November 14, 2007 deferral of SFAS No. 157 for non-financial assets and liabilities, we will begin
following the guidance of SFAS No. 157 with respect to our non-financial assets and liabilities in the quarter ended
March 31, 2009. We do not currently have any material financial assets and liabilities recognized on our balance sheet
that are impacted by the partial adoption of SFAS No. 157. Additionally, we do not currently have any material
non-financial assets or liabilities that are carried at fair value on a recurring basis; however, we do have non-financial
assets that are evaluated against measures of fair value on a non-recurring or as-needed basis, including goodwill,
other intangibles and long-term assets held and used. Based on the financial and non-financial assets and liabilities on
our balance sheet as of September 30, 2008, we do not expect the adoption of SFAS No. 157 to have a material impact
on our consolidated financial position, results of operations or cash flows. In October 2008, the FASB issued FASB
Staff Position FSP FAS 157-3 Determining the Fair Value of a Financial Asset When the Market for That Asset Is Not
Active. FSP FAS 157-3 provides clarifying guidance with respect to the application of SFAS No. 157 in determining
the fair value of a financial asset when the market for that asset in not active. FSP FAS 157-3 was effective upon its
issuance. The application of FSP FAS 157-3 did not have a material impact on our consolidated financial position,
results of operations or cash flows.
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On January 1, 2008, we adopted SFAS No. 159, The Fair Value Option for Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities,
including an amendment of FASB No. 115. SFAS No. 159 permits entities to choose to measure at fair value many
financial instruments and certain other items at fair value that were not previously required to be measured at fair
value. Unrealized gains and losses on items for which the fair value option has been elected are reported in earnings.
SFAS No. 159 does not affect any existing accounting literature that requires certain assets and
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Balance at March 31, 2019

8,772,211
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Balance at December 31, 2017

7,257,787
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Exercise of stock options

4,550

54
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Share-based compensation

2,848

401
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Capital investment
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Net loss on derivative instruments
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Net income

2,125
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Balance at March 31, 2018
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7,265,185
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The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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UNIVERSAL STAINLESS & ALLOY PRODUCTS, INC.

NOTES TO THE UNAUDITED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 1: Nature of Business and Basis of Presentation

¢ 99 ¢

Universal Stainless & Alloy Products, Inc., and its wholly-owned subsidiaries (collectively, “Universal,” “we,” “us,” “our,” or

the “Company”’), manufacture and market semi-finished and finished specialty steel products, including stainless steel,
nickel alloys, tool steel and certain other alloyed steels. Our manufacturing process involves melting, remelting, heat
treating, hot and cold rolling, forging, machining and cold drawing of semi-finished and finished specialty steels. Our
products are sold to service centers, forgers, rerollers, original equipment manufacturers and wire redrawers. Our
customers further process our products for use in a variety of industries, including the aerospace, power generation, oil
and gas, heavy equipment, and general industrial manufacturing industries. We also perform conversion services on
materials supplied by customers.

The accompanying unaudited consolidated statements include the accounts of Universal Stainless & Alloy Products,
Inc. and its subsidiaries and are prepared in accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles (“U.S.
GAAP”) for interim financial reports and the instructions for Form 10-Q and Rule 10-01 of Regulation S-X.
Accordingly, certain information and footnote disclosures normally included in financial statements prepared under
U.S. GAAP have been condensed or omitted pursuant to such regulations. Although the December 31, 2018
consolidated balance sheet data was derived from the audited financial statements, it does not include all disclosures
required by U.S. GAAP. However, we believe that the disclosures are adequate to make the information presented not
misleading. These consolidated financial statements should be read in conjunction with our most recently audited
financial statements and the notes thereto included in our Annual Report on Form 10-K as filed with the Securities and
Exchange Commission. In the opinion of management, the accompanying financial statements include all adjustments
necessary to present a fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements for the periods shown. Interim results
are not necessarily indicative of the operating results for the full fiscal year or any future period. The preparation of
these financial statements in conformity with U.S. GAAP requires us to make estimates and judgments that affect the
reported amounts of assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses, and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities.
Actual results may differ from our estimates. The consolidated financial statements include our accounts and the
accounts of our wholly—owned subsidiaries. We also consolidate, regardless of our ownership percentage, variable
interest entities (each a “VIE”) for which we are deemed to have a controlling financial interest. All intercompany
transactions and balances have been eliminated.

When we obtain an economic interest in an entity, we evaluate the entity to determine if the entity is a VIE, and if we
are deemed to be a primary beneficiary. As a part of our evaluation, we are required to qualitatively assess if we are
the primary beneficiary of the VIE based on whether we hold the power to direct those matters that most significantly
impacted the activities of the VIE and the obligation to absorb losses or the right to receive the benefits of the VIE that
could potentially be significant. Refer to Note 7, New Markets Tax Credit Financing Transaction, for a description of
the VIE’s included in our consolidated financial statements.

Recently Adopted Accounting Pronouncements

In February 2016, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) issued Accounting Standards Update (“ASU”)
2016-02 “Leases (Topic 842),” which amends existing accounting standards for leases. The ASU requires lessees to
recognize most leases on their balance sheet as a lease liability with a corresponding right-of-use asset. For income
statement purposes, the FASB retained a dual model, requiring leases to be classified as either operating or finance.
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The criteria for evaluating are similar to those applied in current lease accounting. The Company adopted the ASU
effective January 1, 2019. The adoption resulted in the recognition of current and noncurrent lease liabilities and
corresponding right-of-use assets on the balance sheet, and did not have a material impact on the consolidated
financial statements.

In February 2018, the FASB issued ASU 2018-02, “Income Statement — Reporting Comprehensive Income,” that permits
companies the option to reclassify stranded tax effects caused by the 2017 U.S. Tax Cuts and Jobs Act from

accumulated other comprehensive income to retained earnings. Consequently, the amendments eliminate the stranded

tax effects resulting from the Tax Cuts and Jobs Act and will improve the usefulness of information reported to

financial statement users. However, because the amendments only relate to the reclassification of the income tax

effects of the Tax Cuts and Jobs Act, the underlying guidance that requires that the effect of a change in tax laws or

rates be included in income from continuing operations is not affected. The Company adopted the ASU effective

January 1, 2019 and recorded the reclassification to retained earnings as of the effective date of the adoption. The
adoption did not have a material impact on the consolidated financial statements.

Recently Issued Accounting Pronouncements

The Company considers the applicability and impact of all ASUs. Recently issued ASUs not listed below were
assessed and determined to be either not applicable or are expected to have minimal impact on our consolidated
financial statements.

In August 2018, the FASB issued ASU 2018-13, “Disclosure Framework—Changes to the Disclosure Requirements for
Fair Value Measurement,” which will modify the disclosure requirements on fair value measurements in Topic 820,
Fair Value Measurement, including the removal of certain disclosure requirements. The amendments in the ASU are
effective for all entities for fiscal years, and interim periods within those fiscal years, beginning after December 15,
2019. Early adoption is permitted upon issuance of the ASU. An entity is permitted to early adopt any removed or
modified disclosures upon issuance of the ASU and delay adoption of the additional disclosures until the effective
date. We are currently evaluating the impact of this guidance on our financial statements and will adopt on or before
January 1, 2020.

6
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Note 2: Net income per Common Share

The following table sets forth the computation of basic and diluted net income per common share:

Three months ended

March 31,
(dollars in thousands, except per share amounts) 2019 2018
Numerator:
Net income $ 1,222 $ 2,125
Denominator:
Weighted average number of shares of common stock outstanding (A) 8,761,538 7,261,966
Weighted average effect of dilutive stock options and other stock compensation 98,987 231,006
Weighted average number of shares of common stock outstanding, as adjusted 8,860,525 7,492,972
Net income per common share:
Net income per common share - Basic $ 0.14 $ 0.29
Net income per common share - Diluted $ 0.14 $ 0.28

(A)The three months ended March 31, 2019 includes 1,408,163 shares in the aggregate issued on May 25 and June 5,
2018 as part of an underwritten public offering by the Company, which are not included in the three months ended
March 31, 2018.

On May 25, 2018, the Company completed an underwritten, public offering involving the issuance and sale by the
Company of 1,224,490 shares of common stock at a public offering price of $24.50 per share. In addition, the
Company granted the underwriters a 30-day option to purchase up to an additional 183,673 shares of common stock.
On June 1, 2018, the underwriters exercised the option in full, and an additional 183,673 shares of common stock
were issued and sold on June 5, 2018. The public offering resulted in gross proceeds to the Company of approximately
$34.5 million, or $32.2 million net of the underwriting discount and other offering fees and expenses. We used the net
proceeds from the public offering to repay amounts outstanding under the Company’s revolving credit facility.

We had options to purchase 641,500 and 338,500 shares of common stock outstanding at a weighted average price of
$26.35 and $33.84 for the three months ended March 31, 2019 and 2018, respectively, which were excluded in the
computation of diluted net income per common share. These options were not included in the computation of diluted
net income per common share because their exercise prices were greater than the average market price of our common
stock.

Note 3: Revenue Recognition

The Company’s revenues are primarily comprised of sales of products. Revenue is recognized when the Company
satisfies its performance obligation under the contract by transferring the promised product to its customer that obtains
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control of the product. A performance obligation is a promise in a contract to transfer a distinct product to a customer.
Most of the Company’s contracts have a single performance obligation, as the promise to transfer products or services
is not separately identifiable from other promises in the contract and, therefore, not distinct.

Revenue is measured as the amount of consideration the Company expects to receive in exchange for transferring
products. As such, revenue is recorded net of returns, allowances, customer discounts, and incentives. Sales and other
taxes are excluded from revenues. Invoiced shipping and handling costs are included in revenue.

The Company’s revenue is primarily from products transferred to customers at a point in time. The Company
recognizes revenue at the point in time in which the customer obtains control of the product, which is generally when
product title passes to the customer upon shipment.

We have determined that there are certain customer agreements involving production of specified product grades and
shapes that require revenue to be recognized over time, in advance of shipment, due to there being no alternative use
for these grades and shapes without significant economic loss. Also, the Company maintains an enforceable right to
payment including a normal profit margin from the customer in the event of contract termination. Contract assets
related to services performed, not yet billed of $0.8 million and $1.0 million are included in Accounts Receivable in
the Consolidated Balance Sheets at March 31, 2019 and December 31, 2018, respectively.

The Company has elected the following practical expedients allowed under Accounting Standards Codification Topic
606:

Shipping costs are not considered to be separate performance obligations.
7
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Performance obligations are satisfied within one year from a given reporting date; consequently we omit disclosure
of the transaction price apportioned to remaining performance obligations on open orders.
The following summarizes our revenue by melt type:

Three months ended

March 31,

2019 2018
Net sales:
Specialty alloys $ 49,764 $ 50,485
Premium alloys (A) 9,370 11,845
Conversion services and other sales 1,137 1,407
Total net sales $ 60,271 63,737

(A)Premium alloys represent all vacuum induction melted (VIM) products.
Note 4: Inventory

Our raw material and starting stock inventory is primarily comprised of ferrous and non-ferrous scrap metal and alloys
such as nickel, chrome, molybdenum, cobalt and copper. Our semi-finished and finished steel products are
work-in-process in various stages of production or are finished products waiting to be shipped to our customers.
Operating materials are primarily comprised of forge dies and production molds and rolls that are consumed over their
useful lives. During the three months ended March 31, 2019 and 2018, we amortized these operating materials in the
amount of $0.6 million and $0.5 million, respectively. This expense is recorded as a component of cost of products
sold on the consolidated statements of operations and included as a part of our total depreciation and amortization on
the consolidated statements of cash flows. Inventory is stated at the lower of cost or net realizable value with cost
principally determined on a weighted average cost method. Such costs include the acquisition cost for raw materials
and supplies, direct labor and applied manufacturing overhead. We assess market based upon actual and estimated
transactions at or around the balance sheet date. Typically, we reserve for slow-moving inventory and inventory that is
being evaluated under our quality control process. The reserves are based upon management’s expected method of
disposition. Inventories consisted of the following:

March

31, December 31,
(in thousands) 2019 2018
Raw materials and starting stock $12,276 $ 9,555
Semi-finished and finished steel products 124,550 115,627
Operating materials 13,612 12,515
Gross inventory 150,438 137,697
Inventory reserves (3,310) (2,959)
Total inventory, net $147,128 $ 134,738
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Note 5: Leases

The Company periodically enters into leases in its normal course of business. At March 31, 2019 the leases in effect
were primarily related to mobile and other production equipment. The term of our leases is generally 60 months or
less, and the leases do not have significant restrictions, covenants, or other nonstandard terms.

We adopted the guidance effective in Leases (Topic 842) on January 1, 2019. Adoption of this guidance did not
change the balance sheet recognition of our finance leases or the income statement recognition of our finance or
operating leases. As a result of adopting the guidance, the Company recorded lease liabilities and right-of-use assets
related to its operating leases. The impact at adoption was immaterial to the Company’s consolidated financial
statements.

Right-of-use assets and lease liabilities are recorded at the present value of minimum lease payments. For our
operating leases, the assets are included in Other long-term assets on the consolidated balance sheet at March 31, 2019
and are amortized within operating income over the respective lease terms. The long-term component of the lease
liability is included in Other long-term liabilities, net, and the current component is included in Other current
liabilities. During the three months ended March 31, 2019, the Company entered into two new lease agreements
accounted for as operating leases.

For our finance leases, the assets are included in Property, plant and equipment, net on the consolidated balance sheets
and are depreciated over the respective lease terms which range from three to five years. The long-term component of
the lease liability is included in Long-term debt and the current component is included in Current portion of long-term
debt. During the three months ended March 31, 2019 and 2018, the Company did not enter into any new lease
agreements accounted for as a finance lease.

8
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As of March 31, 2019, future minimum lease payments applicable to operating and finance leases were as follows:

Operating Finance
Leases  Leases

2019 $172 $454
2020 207 583
2021 184 471
2022 173 56
2023 and thereafter 84 15
Total minimum lease payments $820 $1,579
Less amounts representing interest (50) (192)
Present value of minimum lease payments $ 770 $1,387
Less current obligations (225) (488)
Total long-term lease obligations, net $545 $899
Weighted-average remaining lease term 4 years 2 years

Right-of-use assets recorded to the consolidated balance sheet at March 31, 2019 were $0.8 million and $1.1 million
for operating leases and finance leases, respectively. For the three months ended March 31, 2019, the amortization of
finance lease assets was $0.1 million and is included in cost of products sold in the Consolidated Statements of
Operations.

The Company has elected the practical expedient allowed under Leases (Topic 842) to exclude leases with a term of
12 months or less from the calculation of our lease liabilities and right-of-use assets.

In determining the lease liability and corresponding right-of-use asset for each lease, the Company calculated the
present value of future lease payments using the interest rate implicit in the lease, when available, or the Company’s
incremental borrowing rate. The incremental borrowing rate was determined with reference to the interest rate
applicable under our senior secured revolving credit facility discussed in Note 6, as this facility is collateralized by a
first lien on substantially all of the assets of the Company and its term is similar to the term of our leases.

Note 6: Long-Term Debt

Long-term debt consisted of the following:

March  December
31, 31,
(in thousands) 2019 2018
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Revolving credit facility $39,315 $ 18,204
Notes 17,000 19,000
Term loan 9,286 9,643

Finance leases 1,387 1,502

Total debt 66,988 48,349
Less: current portion of long-term debt ~ (3,916)  (3,907)
Less: deferred financing costs (1,545) (1,603)
Long-term debt, net $61,527 $ 42,839

Credit Facility

On August 3, 2018, we entered into the First Amended and Restated Revolving Credit, Term Loan and Security
Agreement (“Credit Agreement”) with PNC Bank, National Association, as administrative agent and co-collateral agent,
Bank of America, N.A., as co-collateral agent, and PNC Capital Markets LLC, as sole lead arranger and sole
bookrunner. The Credit Agreement amended the prior Revolving Credit, Term Loan and Security Agreement (‘“Prior
Agreement”), and provides for a senior secured revolving credit facility not to exceed $110.0 million (“Revolving Credit
Facility”) and a senior secured term loan facility (“Term Loan”) in the amount of $10.0 million (together with the
Revolving Credit Facility, the “Facilities”’). The Company was in compliance with all the applicable financial covenants
prior to the August 3, 2018 amendment to the Credit Agreement and through March 31, 2019.

The Facilities, which expire August 3, 2023 (the ‘Expiration Date”), are collateralized by a first lien in substantially all
of the assets of the company and its subsidiaries, except that no real property is collateral under the Facilities other
than Company’s real property in North Jackson, Ohio.

Availability under the Credit Agreement is based on eligible accounts receivable and inventory. Further, the Company
must maintain undrawn availability under the Credit Agreement of at least an amount equal to payments due on the
notes issued in connection with the acquisition of the North Jackson facility, as defined in the Credit Agreement, plus
12.5% of the maximum borrowing amount of $110.0 million “(Minimum

9
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Liquidity”). At March 31, 2019, there were no payments due on the notes relevant to the Minimum Liquidity
calculation. This requirement exists until the Notes are paid in full, refinanced or extended.

The Company is required to pay a commitment fee of 0.25% based on the daily unused portion of the Revolving
Credit Facility.

With respect to the Term Loan, the Company pays quarterly installments of the principal of approximately $0.4
million, plus accrued and unpaid interest, on the first day of each fiscal quarter beginning after September 30, 2018.
To the extent not previously paid, the Term Loan will become due and payable in full on the Expiration Date.

Amounts outstanding under the Facilities, at the Company’s option, will bear interest at either a base rate or a LIBOR
based rate, in either case calculated in accordance with the terms of the Credit Agreement. Interest under the Credit
Agreement is payable monthly. We elected to use the LIBOR based rate for the majority of the debt outstanding under
the Facilities for the three months ended March 31, 2019, which was 3.74% on our Revolving Credit Facility and
4.24% for the Term Loan.

The Credit Agreement contains customary affirmative and negative covenants. If a triggering event occurs as defined
in the Credit Agreement, the Company must maintain a fixed charge coverage ratio of not less than 1.10 to 1.0
measured on a rolling four quarter basis and calculated in accordance with the terms of the Credit Agreement.

At March 31, 2019, we had Credit Agreement related net deferred financing costs of approximately $0.9 million. For
the three months ended March 31, 2019, we amortized $0.1 million of deferred financing costs.

During 2018, $6.7 million was drawn on the Revolving Credit Facility to fund cash restricted for use related to the
New Markets Tax Credit (“NMTC”) Financing Transaction. NMTC related restricted cash receipts totaling $8.0 million
in 2018 were applied to the Company’s Revolving Credit Facility, described in Note 7.

Notes

In connection with the acquisition of the North Jackson facility, in August 2011, we issued $20.0 million in aggregate
principal amount of Notes to the sellers of the North Jackson facility as partial consideration of the acquisition.

On January 21, 2016, the Company entered into Amended and Restated Notes in the aggregate principal amount of
$20.0 million, each in favor of Gorbert Inc. (“Holder”). The Company’s obligations under the Notes are collateralized by
a second lien on the same assets of the Company that collateralize the obligations of the Company under the Facilities.
The Holder had the right to elect at any time on or prior to August 17, 2017 to convert all or any portion of the
outstanding principal amount of the Notes. The Holder’s conversion rights expired and are no longer subject to

exercise.

The Notes were originally scheduled to mature on March 17, 2019. On March 30, 2018, the Company provided
notification of its intent to extend the maturity date to March 17, 2020 in accordance with the terms of the Notes.
Upon the Company’s extension of the maturity date of the Notes to March 17, 2020, principal payments in the
aggregate of $2.0 million were made in March 2019.

On March 18, 2019, the Company provided notification of its intent to extend the maturity date to March 17, 2021 in
accordance with the terms of the Notes. Extending the maturity date of the Notes to March 17, 2021 would require a
principal payment in the aggregate amount of $2.0 million to be made in March 2020. In conjunction with the
intended extension of the maturity date of the Notes, $2.0 million has been classified within current portion of
long-term debt.
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In accordance with the terms of the Notes, the Notes have borne interest at a rate of 6.0% per year since August 17,
2017. All accrued and unpaid interest is payable quarterly in arrears on each September 18, December 18, March 18
and June 18.

Note 7: New Markets Tax Credit Financing Transaction

On March 9, 2018, the Company entered into a qualified New Markets Tax Credit financing program with PNC New
Markets Investment Partners, LLC and Boston Community Capital, Inc. related to a new mid-size bar cell capital
project at the Company’s Dunkirk, NY facility. PNC New Markets Investment Partners, LLC made a capital
contribution and the Company made a loan to Dunkirk Investment Fund, LLC (“Investment Fund”) under the qualified
NMTC program. Through this financing transaction, the Company secured low interest financing and the potential for
other future benefits related to its mid-size bar cell capital project.

In connection with the NMTC financing program, the Company loaned $6.7 million aggregate principal amount
(“Leverage Loan”) due in March 2048, to the Investment Fund. Additionally, PNC New Markets Investment Partners,
LLC contributed $3.5 million to the Investment Fund, and as such, PNC New Markets Investment Partners, LLC is
entitled to substantially all tax and other benefits derived from the NMTC. The Investment Fund then contributed the
proceeds to a community development entity (“CDE”). The CDE then loaned the funds, on similar terms, as the
Leverage Loan to Dunkirk Specialty Steel, LLC, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company. The CDE loan proceeds
are restricted for use on the mid-size bar cell capital project.

10
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The NMTC is subject to 100 percent recapture for a period of seven years as provided in the Internal Revenue Code.
The Company is required to comply with various regulations and contractual provisions that apply to the NMTC
arrangement. Non-compliance with applicable requirements could result in projected tax benefits not being realized
and, therefore, require the Company to indemnify PNC New Markets Investment Partners, LLC for any loss or
recapture of NMTCs related to the financing until the Company’s obligation to deliver tax benefits is relieved. The
Company does not anticipate any credit recaptures will be required in connection with this arrangement. This
transaction also includes a put/call provision whereby the Company may be obligated or entitled to repurchase PNC
New Markets Investment Partners, LLC’s interest in the Investment Fund. The Company believes that PNC New
Markets Investment Partners, LLC will exercise the put option in March 2025, at the end of the recapture period. The
value attributed to the put/call is negligible.

Direct costs incurred in structuring this financing transaction totaled $0.7 million. These costs were deferred and will
be amortized over the term of the loans.

The Company has determined that the Investment Fund and CDE are each a VIE, and that it is the primary beneficiary
of each VIE. This conclusion was reached based on the following:

The ongoing activities of the VIE, collecting and remitting interest and fees, and NMTC compliance were all
considered in the initial design and are not expected to significantly affect economic performance throughout the life
of the VIE;
Contractual arrangements obligate the Company to comply with NMTC rules and regulations and provide various
other guarantees to the Investment Fund and CDE;
PNC New Markets Investment Partners, LLC lacks a material interest in the underlying economics of the project; and
The Company is obligated to absorb losses of the VIE.
Because the Company is the primary beneficiary of each VIE, these entities have been included in the Company’s
Consolidated Financial Statements.

As of March 31, 2019, the Company recorded $0.4 million as restricted cash which is included in Other long-term
assets on the Company’s Consolidated Balance Sheets and $2.8 million as Other long-term liabilities related to this
financing transaction. Cash is restricted for use in bar cell capital purchases only. Other long-term liabilities represent
funds contributed to the Investment Fund by PNC New Markets Investment Partners, LLC. There was no significant
change in restricted cash during the three months ended March 31, 2019.

Note 8: Fair Value Measurement
The fair value hierarchy has three levels based on the inputs used to determine fair value, which are as follows:

Level 1 — Unadjusted quoted prices available in active markets for the identical assets or liabilities at the measurement
date.

Level 2 — Unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for similar assets or liabilities, or unadjusted quoted prices for
identical or similar assets or liabilities in markets that are not active, or inputs other than quoted prices that are
observable for the asset or liability.

Level 3 — Unobservable inputs that cannot be corroborated by observable market data and reflect the use of significant

management judgment. These values are generally determined using pricing models for which the assumptions utilize
management’s estimates of market participant assumptions.
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The fair value hierarchy requires the use of observable market data when available. In instances where the inputs used
to measure fair value fall into different levels of the fair value hierarchy, the fair value measurement has been
determined based on the lowest level input significant to the fair value measurement in its entirety. Our assessment of
the significance of a particular item to the fair value measurement in its entirety requires judgment, including the
consideration of inputs specific to the asset or liability.

The carrying amounts of our cash, accounts receivable and accounts payable approximated fair value at March 31,
2019 and December 31, 2018 due to their short-term maturities (Level 1). The fair value of the Term Loan and
Revolving Credit facility at March 31, 2019 and December 31, 2018 approximated the carrying amount as the interest
rate is based upon floating short-term interest rates (Level 2). The fair value of our Notes was approximately $16.9
million at March 31, 2019 and $18.8 million December 31, 2018 (Level 2).

Note 9: Commitments and Contingencies

From time to time, various lawsuits and claims have been or may be asserted against us relating to the conduct of our
business, including routine litigation relating to commercial and employment matters. The ultimate cost and outcome
of any litigation or claim cannot be predicted with certainty. Management believes, based on information presently
available, that the likelihood that the ultimate outcome of any such pending matter will have a material adverse effect
on our financial condition, or liquidity or a material impact on our results of operations is remote, although the
resolution of one or more of these matters may have a material adverse effect on our results of operations for the
period in which the resolution occurs.

Note 10: Income Taxes

Management estimates the annual effective income tax rate quarterly, based on current annual forecasted results.
Items unrelated to current year ordinary income are recognized entirely in the period identified as a discrete item of
tax. The quarterly income tax provision is comprised of tax on ordinary income provided at the most recent estimated
annual effective tax rate (“ETR”), increased or decreased for the tax effect of discrete items.

For the three months ended March 31, 2019 and 2018, our estimated annual effective tax rates applied to ordinary
income were 16.8% and 18.7%, respectively. The difference between the statutory rate and the projected annual ETR
of 16.8% for 2019 is primarily due to research and development credits. Discrete items were not significant during the
three months ended March 31, 2019, and our ETR for the first quarter was 16.9%.

11
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Including the effect of discrete items, our ETR for the three months ended March 31, 2018 was 26.8%. The difference
between the estimated annual ETR of 18.7% and the quarterly rate of 26.8% was primarily related to the expiration of
fully vested stock options, which impacted income tax expense by $0.2 million.

Note 11: Derivatives and Hedging

The Company invoices certain customers in foreign currencies. In order to mitigate the risks associated with
fluctuations in exchange rates with the US Dollar, the Company entered into foreign exchange forward contracts
during 2019 and 2018 for a portion of these sales, and has designated these contracts as cash flow hedges. The
notional value of contracts at March 31, 2019 and December 31, 2018 was $8.0 million and $7.4 million, respectively.
An accumulated unrealized loss of less than $0.1 million was recorded in other comprehensive income for the three
months ended March 31, 2019 and also for the year ended December 31, 2018.

12
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Item 2.MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF
OPERATIONS
Forward-Looking Statements

This Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q contains or incorporates forward looking statements within the meaning of the
Private Securities Reform Act of 1995, which involves risks and uncertainties. The following information should be
read in conjunction with the unaudited consolidated financial information and the notes thereto included in this
Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q. You should not place undue reliance on these forward looking statements. Actual
events or results may differ materially due to competitive factors and other factors referred to in Part 1A. Risk Factors
in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2018, our other filings with the Securities and
Exchange Commission and elsewhere in this Quarterly Report. These factors may cause our actual results to differ
materially from any forward looking statement. These forward looking statements are based on current expectations,
estimates, forecasts, and projections about the industry and markets in which we operate, and management’s beliefs
and assumptions. In addition, other written or oral statements that constitute forward looking statements may be made
by us or on our behalf. Words such as “expect,” “anticipate,” “intend,” “plan,” “believe,” “could,” “estimate,” “may,” “target,”
variations of such words and similar expressions are intended to identify such forward-looking statements. These
statements are not guarantees of future performance and involve risks, uncertainties, and assumptions that are difficult
to predict.

99 ¢

Overview

We manufacture and market semi-finished and finished specialty steel products, including stainless steel, nickel
alloys, tool steel and certain other alloyed steels. Our manufacturing process involves melting, remelting, heat
treating, hot and cold rolling, forging, machining and cold drawing of semi-finished and finished specialty steels. Our
products are sold to rerollers, forgers, service centers, original equipment manufacturers and wire redrawers. Our
customers further process our products for use in a variety of industries, including the aerospace, power generation, oil
and gas, heavy equipment and general industrial markets. We also perform conversion services on materials supplied
by customers.

Sales in the first quarter of 2019 were $60.3 million, an increase of $3.2 million, or 5.6%, from the fourth quarter of
2018. During this period, sales to our largest end market, aecrospace, increased $7.5 million, or 21.4%. Power
generation increased $0.6 million, or 28.9%, and conversion services increased $0.3 million, or 33.1%, while oil &
gas declined $0.9 million, or 14.4%, heavy equipment declined $2.7 million, or 29.3%, and general industrial declined
$1.6 million, or 42.2%.

Sales in the first quarter of 2019 decreased $3.5 million, or 5.4%, compared to the first quarter of 2018. Sales
increased for aerospace by $6.4 million, or 17.6%, and power generation by $0.2 million, or 9.3%. These increases
were offset by decreases in our other end markets, as oil & gas decreased $3.1 million, or 36.4%, heavy equipment
decreased $3.6 million, or 35.8%, general industrial decreased $3.1 million, or 58.5%, and conversion services and
other sales decreased $0.3 million, or 19.2%.

During the first quarter of 2019, our sales of premium alloy products, which we define as all vacuum induction melt
products, represented $9.4 million, or 15.5% of total sales. This was an increase compared to fourth quarter 2018
premium alloy sales of $8.1 million, which was 14.2% of total sales, but a decrease compared to the first quarter of
2018 premium alloy sales which totaled $11.8 million, or 18.6% of total sales. Our premium alloy products are
primarily sold to the aerospace end market.

Our backlog, before surcharges, at March 31, 2019 was $130.1 million, an increase of $3.9 million, or 3.1%,
compared to December 31, 2018, and an increase of $39.5 million, or 43.6%, compared to March 31, 2018.
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The Company’s gross margin for the first quarter of 2019 was $7.4 million, or 12.2% of net sales, compared to $6.4
million, or 11.3% of net sales, for the fourth quarter of 2018 and $9.3 million, or 14.5% of net sales, for the first
quarter of 2018. The decrease in our gross margin from the first quarter of 2018 is largely a result of lower than
forecasted shipment volume, product mix, and slower recovery in surcharges.

Selling, General and Administrative (“SG&A”) expenses were $5.0 million, or 8.2% of net sales, in the first quarter
2019 compared to $5.6 million, or 9.7% of net sales, in the fourth quarter of 2018 and $5.2 million, or 8.2% of net
sales, in the first quarter of 2018. SG&A decreased compared to the first quarter of 2018 but was flat as a percent of
sales due to the decrease in sales in the same period.

The Company’s net income was $1.2 million for the first quarter of 2019 compared to $0.6 million in the fourth quarter
of 2018 and $2.1 million in the first quarter of 2018.

13
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Results of Operations

Three months ended March 31, 2019 as compared to the three months ended March 31, 2018

(in thousands, except shipped ton
information)

Net sales:

Stainless steel

High-strength low alloy steel

Tool steel

High-temperature alloy steel
Conversion services and other sales

Total net sales
Cost of products sold

Gross margin

Selling, general and administrative
expenses

Operating income

Interest expense

Deferred financing amortization

Other expense (income), net

Income before income taxes
Provision for income taxes

Net income
Tons shipped

Sales dollars per shipped ton

Market Segment Information

(in thousands)

Net sales:
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Three months ended March 31,

2019 2018
Percentage Percentage Dollar /
of net of net ton
Amount sales Amount sales variance
$45,995 76.3 % $42,939 674 % $3,056
5,764 9.6 5,203 8.2 561
6,567 109 9,641 15.1 (3,074)
808 1.3 4,547 7.1 (3,739)
1,137 19 1,407 2.2 (270)
60,271 100.0 63,737 100.0 (3,466)
52,901 87.8 54,465 85.5 (1,564)
7,370 12.2 9,272 14.5 (1,902)
4966 8.2 5,207 8.2 (241)
2,404 4.0 4,065 6.3 (1,661)
854 1.4 1,142 1.8 (288)
59 0.1 64 0.1 ®))
21 - 43) (0.1 (64)
1,470 2.5 2902 4.5 (1,304)
248 0.4 777 1.2 (529)
$1,222 2.1 % $2,125 3.3 % $(775)
10,160 11,156 (996)
$5,932 $5,713 $219

Three months ended March 31,

2019

2018

Percentage

of net
Amount sales

Amount sales

Percentage Dollar
of net

Percentage
variance

7.1 %
10.8

(31.9)

(82.2)

(19.2)

(5.4)
(2.9)

(20.5)
(4.6)
(40.9)
(25.2)
(7.8)
(148.8)

(44.9)
(68.1)

(36.5)
(8.9)

3.8 %

Percentage

variance variance

122



Edgar Filing: QUANTA SERVICES INC - Form 10-Q

Service centers $43,056 714 % $44,521 69.9 % $(1,465) (3.3) %
Original equipment manufacturers 5,226 8.7 4,482 7.0 744 16.6
Rerollers 6,031 10.0 8,364 13.1 (2,333) (27.9)
Forgers 4,821 8.0 4963 7.8 (142) (2.9
Conversion services and other sales 1,137 1.9 1,407 2.2 270) (19.2)
Total net sales $60,271 100.0 % $63,737 1000 % $(3,466) (5.4) %

14
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Melt Type Information
Three months ended March 31,
(in thousands) 2019 2018
Percentage Percentage Dollar
of net of net Percentage
Amount sales Amount sales variance variance
Net sales:
Specialty alloys $49,764 82.6 % $50485 792 % $(721) (14) %
Premium alloys (A) 9,370 15.5 11,845 18.6 (2,475) (20.9)
Conversion services and other sales 1,137 1.9 1,407 2.2 270) (19.2)
Total net sales $60,271 100.0 % $63,737 100.0 % $(3,466) (54) %

(A)Premium alloys represent all vacuum induction melted (VIM) products.

The majority of our products are sold to service centers rather than the ultimate end market customers. The end market
information in this Quarterly Report is our estimate based upon our knowledge of our customers and the grade of
material sold to them, which they will in-turn sell to the ultimate end market customer.

End Market Information
Three months ended March 31,

(in thousands) 2019 2018

Percentage Percentage Dollar

of net of net Percentage

Amount sales Amount sales variance variance

Net sales:
Aerospace $42,607 70.7 % $36,235 569 % $6,372 176 %
Power generation 2,503 4.2 2,289 3.6 214 9.3
Oil & gas 5,376 8.9 8,459 13.3 (3,083) (36.4)
Heavy equipment 6,444 10.7 10,035 15.7 (3,591) (35.8)
General industrial, conversion services and other sales 3,341 5.5 6,719 10.5 (3,378) (50.3)
Total net sales $60,271 100.0 % $63,737 1000 % $(3,466) (5.4) %
Net sales:

Net sales for the three months ended March 31, 2019 decreased $3.5 million, or 5.4%, as compared to the three
months ended March 31, 2018. This reflects a decrease in consolidated shipments of 8.9%, partially offset by an
increase in average sales dollar per shipped ton of 3.8%. The increase in sales dollars per ton is primarily the result of
shift in mix to higher value premium alloy products. In addition, announced base price increases contributed to the
increase.

Product sales to the aerospace and power generation end markets increased, while sales to our other end markets
decreased. As a percent of sales, our premium alloy sales decreased to 15.5% of total sales for the three months ended
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March 31, 2019 compared to 18.6% for the three months ended March 31, 2018; however, premium alloy sales
increased from the three months ended December 31, 2018 when they were 14.2% of total sales. Our premium alloy
sales are primarily for the aerospace market and are a principal factor of growth in that end market.

Gross margin:

As a percent of sales, our gross margin for the three months ended March 31, 2019 was 12.2% compared to 14.5% for
the three months ended March 31, 2018. The decrease is largely a result of lower than forecasted shipment volume,
product mix, and slower recovery in customer surcharges. Gross margin compared to the three months ended
December 31, 2018 increased from 11.3%.

Selling, general and administrative expenses:

Our SG&A expenses consist primarily of employee costs, which include salaries, payroll taxes and benefit related
costs, legal and accounting services, stock compensation and insurance costs. SG&A expenses decreased by $0.2
million in the three months ended March 31, 2019 compared to the three months ended March 31, 2018. The decrease
is primarily due to salary and employment costs, including employee incentive compensation. As a percentage of
sales, our SG&A expenses were 8.2% of sales in both periods.

Interest expense and other financing costs:
Interest expense for the three months ended March 31, 2019 totaled $0.9 million, compared to $1.1 million for the
three months ended March 31, 2018. The decrease in interest expense is attributable to lower debt resulting from the

2018 public equity offering.
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Income tax provision:

Management estimates the annual effective income tax rate quarterly, based on current annual forecasted results.
Items unrelated to current year ordinary income are recognized entirely in the period identified as a discrete item of
tax. The quarterly income tax provision is comprised of tax on ordinary income provided at the most recent estimated
annual effective tax rate (“ETR”), increased or decreased for the tax effect of discrete items.

For the three months ended March 31, 2019 and 2018, our estimated annual effective tax rates applied to ordinary
income were 16.8% and 18.7%, respectively. The difference between the statutory rate and the projected annual ETR
of 16.8% for 2019 is primarily due to research and development credits. Discrete items were not significant during the
three months ended March 31, 2019, and our ETR for the first quarter was 16.9%.

Including the effect of discrete items, our ETR for the three months ended March 31, 2018 was 26.8%. The difference
between the estimated annual ETR of 18.7% and the quarterly rate of 26.8% was primarily related to the expiration of
fully vested stock options, which impacted income tax expense by $0.2 million.

Net income:

For the three months ended March 31, 2019, the Company recorded net income of $1.2 million, or $0.14 per diluted
share, compared to $2.1 million, or $0.28 per diluted share, for the three months ended March 31, 2018. The first
quarter of 2019 includes an additional 1.4 million weighted average shares outstanding due to the second quarter 2018
equity issuance.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

Historically, we have financed our operations through cash provided by operating activities and borrowings on our
credit facilities.

On May 25, 2018, the Company completed an underwritten, public offering involving the issuance and sale by the
Company of 1,224,490 shares of common stock at a public offering price of $24.50 per share. In addition, the
Company granted the underwriters a 30-day option to purchase up to an additional 183,673 shares of common stock.
On June 1, 2018, the underwriters exercised the option in full, and an additional 183,673 shares of common stock
were issued and sold on June 5, 2018. The public offering resulted in gross proceeds to the Company of approximately
$34.5 million, or $32.2 million net of the underwriting discount and other offering fees and expenses. We used the net
proceeds from the public offering to repay amounts outstanding under the Company’s credit facility.

On March 9, 2018, the Company entered into a qualified NMTC financing program with PNC New Markets
Investment Partners, LLC and Boston Community Capital, Inc. related to a new mid-size bar cell capital project at the
Company’s Dunkirk, NY facility. PNC New Markets Investment Partners, LLC made a capital contribution and the
Company made a loan to Dunkirk Investment Fund, LLC (“Investment Fund”) under the NMTC program. Through this
financing transaction, the Company secured low interest financing and the potential for other future benefits related to
its mid-size bar cell capital project.

In connection with the NMTC financing program, the Company loaned $6.7 million aggregate principal amount
(“Leverage Loan”) due in March 2048, to the Investment Fund. Additionally, PNC New Markets Investment Partners,
LLC contributed $3.5 million to the Investment Fund, and as such, PNC New Markets Investment Partners, LLC is
entitled to substantially all tax and other benefits derived from the NMTC. The Investment Fund then contributed the
proceeds to a community development entity (“CDE”). The CDE then loaned the funds, on similar terms, as the
Leverage Loan to Dunkirk Specialty Steel, LLC, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company. The CDE loan proceeds

Table of Contents 126



Edgar Filing: QUANTA SERVICES INC - Form 10-Q

are restricted for use on the mid-size bar cell capital project. The Company determined that the Investment Fund and
CDE are each a VIE; refer to Note 7 for further details.

The economic effect of the NMTC transactions described above is that the Company secured low cost financing for its
mid-size bar cell project.

Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities:

During the three months ended March 31, 2019, net cash used in operating activities was $17.8 million. Our net
income, adjusted for non-cash expenses, generated $6.5 million. We utilized $16.3 million of cash from managed
working capital, which we define as net accounts receivable, plus inventory and minus accounts payable. Accounts
receivable increased $2.0 million due to the timing of sales and collections and accounts payable decreased $1.3
million due to the timing of payments to vendors. We used $13.0 million in the growth of inventory to support the
increased order backlog. In addition, we utilized $8.0 million of cash from other assets and liabilities, primarily
decreased accruals for employee related costs.

During the three months ended March 31, 2018, net cash used in operating activities was $12.4 million. Our net
income, adjusted for non-cash expenses, generated $8.0 million of cash. We utilized $20.1 million of cash from
managed working capital, which we define as net accounts receivable, plus inventory and minus accounts payable.
Accounts receivable increased $8.6 million due to the increase in sales in the first quarter of 2018 compared to the
fourth quarter of 2017. Inventories used $3.8 million in support of the increased backlog with an additional $7.7
million decrease in accounts payable. Accrued employment costs were reduced by $0.5 million primarily due to
decrease in accrued payroll.

Net cash used in investing activities:

During the three months ended March 31, 2019, we used $5.6 million in cash for capital expenditures compared to
$2.5 million for the three months ended March 31, 2018. Approximately $2.3 million of the current year to date
capital expenditures were payments related to the mid-size bar cell capital project at our Dunkirk, NY facility. We
expect capital expenditures to approximate 2018 levels in 2019.

Net cash provided by financing activities:

Net cash provided by financing activities totaled $20.0 million for the three months ended March 31, 2019. The
change was driven by our capital expenditure and managed working capital needs.

16
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Net cash provided by financing activities totaled $23.2 million for the three months ended March 31, 2018. The
increase was driven by higher working capital levels, as well as borrowings related to the mid-size bar cell capital
project at our Dunkirk, NY facility. These borrowings were done in conjunction with utilization of the NMTC
financing program, described in Note 7 to the unaudited consolidated financial statements included in the Quarterly
Report on Form 10-Q.

We believe that our cash flows from continuing operations as well as available borrowings under our credit facility are
adequate to satisfy our working capital, capital expenditure requirements, and other contractual obligations for the
foreseeable future, including at least the next 12 months.

Raw materials

The cost of raw materials represents approximately 40% of the cost of products sold in the first quarters of 2019 and
2018. The major raw materials used in our operations include nickel, chrome, molybdenum and carbon scrap. We
continuously monitor market price fluctuations of key raw materials. We maintain sales price surcharge mechanisms
on certain of our products, priced at time of order or shipment, to mitigate the risk of substantial raw material cost
fluctuations. The market values for these raw materials and others continue to fluctuate based on supply and demand,
market disruptions and other factors.

Credit Facility

On August 3, 2018, we entered into the First Amended and Restated Revolving Credit, Term Loan and Security
Agreement (“Credit Agreement”) with PNC Bank, National Association, as administrative agent and co-collateral agent,
Bank of America, N.A., as co-collateral agent, and PNC Capital Markets LLC, as sole lead arranger and sole
bookrunner. The Credit Agreement amended the prior Revolving Credit, Term Loan and Security Agreement (‘“Prior
Agreement”), and provides for a senior secured revolving credit facility not to exceed $110.0 million (“Revolving Credit
Facility”) and a senior secured term loan facility (“Term Loan”) in the amount of $10.0 million (together with the
Revolving Credit Facility, the “Facilities”).

The Facilities, which expire on August 3, 2023 (the ‘Expiration Date”), are collateralized by a first lien in substantially
all of the assets of the Company and its subsidiaries, except that no real property is collateral under the Facilities other
than Company’s real property in North Jackson, Ohio.

Availability under the Credit Agreement is based on eligible accounts receivable and inventory. Further, the Company
must maintain undrawn availability under the Credit Agreement of at least an amount equal to payments due on the
notes issued in connection with the acquisition of the North Jackson facility, as defined in the Credit Agreement, plus
12.5% of the maximum borrowing amount of $110.0 million (“Minimum Liquidity”’). At March 31, 2019, there were no
payments due on the notes relevant to the Minimum Liquidity calculation. This requirement exists until the Notes are
paid in full, refinanced or extended.

The Company is required to pay a commitment fee of 0.25% based on the daily unused portion of the Revolving
Credit Facility.

With respect to the Term Loan, the Company pays quarterly installments of the principal of approximately $0.4
million, plus accrued and unpaid interest, on the first day of each fiscal quarter beginning after September 30, 2018.

To the extent not previously paid, the Term Loan will become due and payable in full on the Expiration Date.

Amounts outstanding under the Facilities, at the Company’s option, will bear interest at either a base rate or a LIBOR
based rate, in either case calculated in accordance with the terms of the Credit Agreement. Interest under the Credit
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Agreement is payable monthly. We elected to use the LIBOR based rate for the majority of the debt outstanding under
the Facilities for the three months ended March 31, 2019, which was 3.74% on our Revolving Credit Facility and
4.24% for the Term Loan.

The Credit Agreement contains customary affirmative and negative covenants. If a triggering event occurs as defined
in the Credit Agreement, the Company must maintain a fixed charge coverage ratio of not less than 1.10 to 1.0
measured on a rolling four quarter basis and calculated in accordance with the terms of the Credit Agreement.

At March 31, 2019, we had Credit Agreement related net deferred financing costs of approximately $0.9 million. For
the three months ended March 31, 2019, we amortized $0.1 million of deferred financing costs.

During 2018, $6.7 million was drawn on the Revolving Credit Facility to fund cash restricted for use related to the

New Markets Tax Credit (“NMTC”) Financing Transaction. NMTC related restricted cash receipts totaling $8.0 million
in 2018 were applied to the Company’s Revolving Credit Facility, described in Note 7 to the unaudited consolidated
financial statements included in the Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q.

Notes

In connection with the acquisition of the North Jackson facility, in August 2011, we issued $20.0 million in aggregate
principal amount of Notes to the sellers of the North Jackson facility as partial consideration of the acquisition.

On January 21, 2016, the Company entered into Amended and Restated Notes in the aggregate principal amount of
$20.0 million, each in favor of Gorbert Inc. (“Holder”). The Company’s obligations under the Notes are collateralized by
a second lien on the same assets of the Company that collateralize the obligations of the Company under the Facilities.
The Holder had the right to elect at any time on or prior to August 17, 2017 to convert all or any portion of the
outstanding principal amount of the Notes. The Holder’s conversion rights expired and are no longer subject to

exercise.
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The Notes were originally scheduled to mature on March 17, 2019. On March 30, 2018, the Company provided
notification of its intent to extend the maturity date to March 17, 2020 in accordance with the terms of the Notes.
Upon the Company’s extension of the maturity date of the Notes to March 17, 2020, principal payments in the
aggregate of $2.0 million were made in March 2019.

On March 18, 2019, the Company provided notification of its intent to extend the maturity date to March 17, 2021 in
accordance with the terms of the Notes. Extending the maturity date of the Notes to March 17, 2021 would require a
principal payment in the aggregate amount of $2.0 million to be made in March 2020. In conjunction with the
intended extension of the maturity date of the Notes, $2.0 million has been classified within current portion of
long-term debt.

In accordance with the terms of the Notes, the Notes have borne interest at a rate of 6.0% per year since August 17,
2017. All accrued and unpaid interest is payable quarterly in arrears on each September 18, December 18, March 18
and June 18.

Leases

The Company periodically enters into leases in its normal course of business. We adopted the guidance effective in
Leases (Topic 842) on January 1, 2019. As a result of adopting the guidance, the Company recorded lease liabilities
and right-of-use assets related to its operating leases to the consolidated balance sheet at the present value of minimum
lease payments. The assets are included in Other long-term assets in the consolidated balance sheet at March 31, 2019,
and are amortized over the respective terms which are five years or less. The long term component of the lease
liability is recorded in Other long-term liabilities, net and the current component is included in Other current
liabilities. During the three months ended March 31, 2019, the Company entered into two new lease agreements
accounted for as operating leases.

The accounting for finance leases did not change. The right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for leases finance leases
are recorded at the present value of minimum lease payments. The assets are included in Property, plant and
equipment, net on the consolidated balance sheets and are depreciated over the respective lease terms. The long-term
component of the lease liability is included in Long-term debt and the current component is included in Current
portion of long-term debt. During the three months ended March 31, 2019 and 2018, the Company did not enter into
any new lease agreements accounted for as a finance lease.

Item 3.QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK

The Company has reviewed its market risk and believes there are no significant changes from that disclosed in the
Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2018, except as provided in this Form 10-Q
in “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations.”

Item 4. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

The Company’s management, including the Company’s Chairman, President and Chief Executive Officer and its Vice
President of Finance, Chief Financial Officer and Treasurer, performed an evaluation of the effectiveness of the
Company’s disclosure controls and procedures. Based on that evaluation, the Company’s Chairman, President and
Chief Executive Officer and its Vice President of Finance, Chief Financial Officer and Treasurer concluded that, as of
the end of the fiscal period covered by this quarterly report, the Company’s disclosure controls and procedures are
effective. During the fiscal quarter ended March 31, 2019, there were no changes in the Company’s internal control
over financial reporting which have materially affected, or are reasonably likely to materially affect, the Company’s
internal control over financial reporting.
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Part II. OTHER INFORMATION

Item 1.LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

There are no material changes from the legal proceedings disclosed in Item 3. of the Company’s Annual Report on
Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2018.

Item 1A.RISK FACTORS

In addition to the other information set forth in this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q, the factors discussed in Part I,
“Item 1A. Risk Factors” in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2018 could materially
affect our business, financial conditions or future results. Those risk factors are not the only risks facing us. Additional
risks and uncertainties not currently known or that we currently deem to be immaterial also may materially adversely
affect our business, financial condition or operating results. We believe that there have been no material changes in
our risk factors from those disclosed in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2018.

Item 2. UNREGISTERED SALES OF EQUITY SECURITIES AND USE OF PROCEEDS
None.

Item 3.DEFAULTS UPON SENIOR SECURITIES
None.

Item 4. MINE SAFETY DISCLOSURES
Not Applicable.

Item 5.OTHER INFORMATION
Not Applicable.
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Item 6. EXHIBITS

Exhibit
Number Exhibit

31.1 Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursuant to Rule 13a-14(a) and 15d-14(a). as adopted pursuant to
Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 (filed herewith).

31.2 Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuant to Rule 13a-14(a) and 15d-14(a). as adopted pursuant to
Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 (filed herewith).

32.1 Certification of Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer pursuant to Rule 18 U.S.C. Section
1350. as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 (filed herewith).

101 The following financial information from this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the fiscal quarter ended
September 30, 2018, formatted in XBRL (Extensible Business Reporting Language) and filed electronically
herewith: (i) the Consolidated Balance Sheets; (ii) the Consolidated Statements of Operations; (iii) the
Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income (iv) the Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows; and (v)
the Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (filed herewith).
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused this report to be
signed on its behalf by the undersigned thereunto duly authorized.

Date: April 24, 2019

/s/ Dennis M. Oates /s/  Christopher T. Scanlon

Dennis M. Oates Christopher T. Scanlon

Chairman, President and Chief Executive Officer Vice President of Finance,

(Principal Executive Officer) Chief Financial Officer and Treasurer

(Principal Financial and Accounting Officer)
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